
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, March 6, 2023 

Immediately Following the  
Bartlesville Education Authority 

Special Meeting beginning at 5:30 pm. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Copeland. 
 

2. Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum. 
 

3. Citizens to be heard. 
 

4. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
• Cleaning Week March 26 – April 1, 2023. Presented by Mayor Copeland. 

 
5. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority. 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority. 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Convention and Visitor’s Bureau Board  

(Visit Bartlesville) 
• One opening on the White Rose Cemetery Board 

 
6. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of February 6, 2023. 

 
 b. Approval of Appointment, Reappointments and Ratifications to Authorities, 

Boards, Commissions and Committees 
i. Appointment of Mr. Richard Keim to a three-year term on the White Rose Cemetery 

Board at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
ii. Reappointment of Mr. Quinn Schipper to a three-year term on the City Planning 

Commission at the recommendation of Councilmember Roane. 
iii. Reappointment of Ms. Gretchen Wendtland to a three-year term on the Park Board 

at the recommendation of Vice Mayor Curd. 
 
 c. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Leases, MOU’s, 

Proposals, and Lease Terminations. 
i. Approval of a Professional Service Agreement with Aimright Testing & Engineering 

for geotechnical services for the Wastewater Treatment Plan Expansion – Caney 
River Corridor Improvements in the amount of $4,350. 

ii. Contract with Witt O’Brien’ of Houston, Texas to update the Storm-Water Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWP3) for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport in the amount of 
$2,150. 



 
 
 

iii. Contract between Link Media Outdoor and the Bartlesville Public Library/City of 
Bartlesville for billboards for the 2023 Summer Reading Program in the amount of 
$2,140. 

iv. Proposal from All Media Integration for an audio video upgrade for the City Council 
Chambers in the amount of $38,327.81. 

v. Lease of Hangar 5 at the Bartlesville Municipal Airport to Emrich Aerial Spraying, 
LLC to conduct aerial spraying operations and other aeronautical activities. 

vi. Termination of Hangar 5 Lease Agreement requested by Wolfe Aviation with the 
Bartlesville Municipal Airport/City of Bartlesville. 

 
 d. Approval of Resolutions 

 i.  Approval of a resolution of the City Council of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
providing comment to the Assistant Secretary of the Army for Civil Works on the 
Water Resources Development Act of 2022; and containing other provisions related 
thereto.  

 
 e.  Receipt of Financials 
  i.  Interim Financials for seven months ending January 31, 2023.  
 
 f. Receipt of Bids 
  i.  Bid No. 2022-2023-014 Minnesota Rehabilitation – Highway 75 to Madison 

Boulevard. 
  ii.  Bid No. 2022-2023-015 City HVAC Component Replacement 
   

7. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2022-2023-014 for the Minnesota 
Rehabilitation Project. Presented by Councilmember Dorsey.  

 
8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2022-2023-015 for City Hall HVAC 

Component Replacement Project. Presented by Councilmember Roane. 
 

9. Consideration and action on a Resolution of the City Council of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma (the “City”) approving the incurrence of indebtedness by the Bartlesville 
Education Authority (the “Authority”) issuing its Educational Facilities Lease Revenue 
Bonds (Bartlesville Public Schools Project) Series 2023 (the “Bonds”); providing that the 
organizational document creating the authority is subject to the provisions of the Bond 
Indenture authorizing the issuance of said Bonds; waiving competitive bidding and 
authorizing the sale of said Bonds by the Authority at negotiated sale and at a price less 
than par; approving the forms of a Continuing Disclosure Agreement and an Official 
Statement relating to the Bonds; authorizing the execution of all necessary documents, 
and containing other provisions relating thereto. 
 

10. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an Ordinance granting to Public Service 
Company of Oklahoma (PSO) the right, privilege, and non- exclusive franchise for 
twenty-five years to build, equip, maintain, extend, own, and operate a system for the 
manufacture, transmission, distribution, sale, and control of electricity and 
communications circuits for itself and others in, under, over, across, through and along 
any and all of the present and future streets, alleys, avenues, ways, and other public 
places and grounds within the limits of the City of Bartlesville, Washington County, 
Oklahoma; and granting to PSO the right to operate an electric business pursuant to 
reasonable rules and regulation by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission; with PSO 



 
 
 

agreeing to charge legal rates for the electric service; and, if possible, to sell and 
deliver to the City all electricity and services requested by it; providing for payment to 
the City by PSO of a monthly fee on gross receipts from the delivery and sale of 
electricity; and providing for the repeal of conflicting ordinances; and declaring an 
emergency. Presented by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk. 

 
11.  Discuss and take possible action to approve a Resolution of the City of Bartlesville, 

Washington County, Oklahoma (“city”), calling for a special election to be held on the 
9th day of May 2023, for the purpose of submitting an Ordinance for approval by the 
qualified electors that will grant to public service company of Oklahoma, an Oklahoma 
corporation (PSO), a non-exclusive franchise for twenty-five years to build, equip, 
maintain, extend, own and operate a system for the manufacture, transmission, 
distribution, sale and control of electricity in and to the city and the public generally, to 
a vote of the registered voters of the city for their approval or disapproval; specifying 
the question to be voted upon at the special election and further directing the 
distribution and publication of this resolution. Presented by Jason Muninger, CFO/City 
Clerk. 
 

12. Discuss and take possible action to approve the Special Election Proclamation and 
Notice calling for an election on the proposition stated in Notice. Presented by Jason 
Muninger, CFO/City Clerk. 
 

13. Discuss and take possible action to approve a Lease Agreement between the City of 
Bartlesville and Friends of Kiddie Park. Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of 
Community Development.  
 

14. Discuss and take possible action on a Resolution for proposed changes to the City 
Council ward boundaries. Presented by Larry R. Curtis, Director of Community 
Development.  
 

15. Discuss and take possible action on an application from Lance A. Windel of Arcadian 
Housing, LP, for approval of an Amendment to an Existing PUD and its restrictions and 
approval of a PUD Site Development Plan in a RS-7/PUD (Single-Family Residential-
7/Planned Unit Development)  Zoning District, on an approximately 30 acre +/- tract of 
land located north of Palmetto Drive, west of Virginia Avenue, legally described as Oak 
Wood Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma according to the recorded 
plat there. Presented by Larry R. Curtis, Director of Community Development. 
 

16. Discuss and take action on an application from Mick Olson, on behalf of the Voice of 
the Martyrs, for Final Plat Approval of Voice of the Martyrs Addition, a 1-lot mixed use 
development on a 66.68-acre tract of land located on the west side of Bison Road, 
approximately one-quarter mile south of Nowata Road, legally described as a part of the 
Northeast Quarter of Section 22, Township 26 North, Range 13 East, Washington 
County, Oklahoma. Presented by Larry R. Curtis, Director of Community Development. 
 

17. Discuss and take action on proposed amendments to the Sewer Use Pretreatment 
Standards Ordinance for Fats, Oils and Grease. Presented by Terry Lauritsen, Director, 
Water Utilities. 
 



 
 
 

18. Presentation and discussion on proposed amendments to Chapter 20, Division 7 of the 
Bartlesville Municipal Code pertaining to Water Shortage. Presented by Terry Lauritsen, 
Director of Water Utilities.  
 

19. Discuss and take possible action to approve the detailed goals as part of the 
Bartlesville NEXT strategic plan. Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager. 
 

20. New Business 
 

21. City Manager and Staff Reports. 
 

22. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 

23. Adjournment. 
 

The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent 
public view at City Hall at 5 p.m. on Thursday, March 2, 2023. 
 
 

   Jason Muninger      /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO                                    by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 

      
 
 
 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Sparklight: Channel 56 
  
Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official action 
can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, strike, or 
continue any agenda item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City Manager, Staff or 
City Attorney, or back to a committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a specific later date or 
stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City Council may at their 
discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. If participation at any 
public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled meeting is encouraged 
to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation. 
 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
 

Cleaning Week 
March 26 -April 1, 223 

  
WHEREAS, regular cleaning and disinfection are an investment in human health and 
safety, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention stresses the importance of 
routine cleaning and disinfecting to protect public health; and 
 
WHEREAS, according to ISSA, the world’s leading trade association for the cleaning 
industry, cleaned and disinfected surfaces reduce virus concentration by 41.7%; when 
combined with hand hygiene, this increases to 85.4%, and  
 
WHEREAS, nearly three in five are more aware of surface cleanliness when they are 
out in public, and over half say that they would be more likely to frequent a business if it 
provided evidence that their facility has been property disinfected; and  
 
WHEREAS, manufacturers and distributors produce and deliver crucial cleaning and 
hygiene products; and 
 
WHEREAS, essential frontline cleaning professionals work tirelessly to keep our 
schools, hospitals, work places, and other spaces healthy and safe for us all; and  
 
WHEREAS, the grateful residents of the City of Bartlesville proudly support and join in 
this national celebration of the cleaning industry and bring attention to the importance of 
ensuring clean and sanitary conditions at work, in schools, and  at home. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Dale Copeland, Mayor of the City of Bartlesville do hereby 
officially proclaim the week of March 26, 2023 as “Cleaning Week”. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands 
and caused the Official Seal of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma, to be affixed this 6th day of March, in the 
year of our Lord two thousand and twenty-three. 

 
 

                                                                                                             
   Dale W. Copeland, Mayor and City Council Ward 1 

 

Agenda Item 4.



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, February 6, 2023 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
MINUTES 

(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2022 
and the Agenda was posted February 2, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.)  

 
Present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Councilmembers Trevor Dorsey, 
Billie Roane, and Loren Roszel. 
 
City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager, Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason Muninger, City 
Clerk/CFO; Micah Siemers, Director of Engineering; Fire Chief David Topping; Police Chief Tracy 
Roles; Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; Kelli Williams, Chief Communications 
Officer; Laura Sanders, Director of Human Resources; Deputy Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry, 
Security; and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant. 

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by 

Mayor Copeland. 
 
2. Roll Call was held and a quorum established. 

 
3. The Invocation will be provided by Errol Hada, The Lighthouse Outreach Center. 

 
4. Citizens to be heard. 

 
Bill Payton provided his opinion regarding the September 10, 2022 drag queen show, and how 
he feels the event broke City laws. Joel Rabin provided his opinion supporting Mr. Payton and 
adding additional rhetoric against holding events such as these in public parks. 
 
Steve Hine provided his opinion that tax dollars should not be used for outside attorneys to 
develop an ordinance in regard to obscenity and the holding of a drag queen show in public 
areas, and to use the opinion that was previously provided by City Attorney Kane. 
 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
• Police Chief’s Award for Valor to be presented to citizen Aaron Rademaker and a 

Commendation will be presented to E911 Dispatcher Kaylee Hill-Johnson by Deputy 
Chief Kevin Ickleberry. 
 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  
• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority. 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority. 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Convention and Visitor’s Bureau Board  

(Visit Bartlesville) 
• Two openings on the White Rose Cemetery Board 

 

Agenda Item 6.a.i.



 
 
 

Mayor Copeland read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City 
Committees. Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the City 
Manager’s Office. 
 

7. Consent Docket 
a. Approval of Minutes 

i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of January 3, 2023. 
 
 b. Approval of Appointment, Reappointments and Ratifications to Authorities, 

Boards, Commissions and Committees 
i. Appointment of Ms. Margaret Anton to a three-year term on the Bartlesville Adult 

Center Trust Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
ii. Appointment of Mr. Richard Sparks to a three-year term on the Sewer System 

Improvement Oversight Committee at the recommendation of Councilmember 
Dorsey. 

iii. Reappointment of Mr. Kregg Cammack and Mr. John Joyce to additional three-terms 
on the Bartlesville Adult Center Trust Authority at the recommendation of Mayor 
Copeland. 

iv. Reappointment of Mr. Jay Jenzen and Ms. Denise Parks to additional three-year 
terms on the Bartlesville History Museum Trust Authority at the recommendation of 
Councilmember Roane. 

v. Reappointment of Mr. Rob Fries to an additional two-year term on the Bartlesville 
Library Board at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 

vi. Reappointment of Ms. Laura Higbee to an additional three-year term on the Board of 
Adjustment at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 

vii. Reappointment of Ms. Sara Freeman to a three-year term on the City Planning 
Commission at the recommendation of Councilmember Roane. 

viii. Reappointment of Mr. Ben Rovenstine to an additional three-year term on the Park 
Board at the recommendation of Vice Mayor Curd. 

 
 c. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Leases, MOU’s and  

Proposals. 
i. Update of Article 25, Section 2 of the International Association of Fire Fighters 

(IAFF) Collective Bargaining Agreement setting health and dental insurance 
subsidy rates. 

ii. Professional Services Contract with BKL Inc. design services on the Park Roads 
and Parking Lot project in the amount of $106,250. 

iii. Amendment to the Professional Service Contract with Freese & Nichols, Inc. to add 
design for a parallel pedestrian bridge to the Sunset Boulevard over Butler Creek 
Bridge Rehabilitation and Repair project in the amount of $96,045. 

iv. Professional Service and Repair Contract with H-Tech Systems, Inc. for roof repairs 
on the City Hall building located at 401 S. Johnstone Ave. in the amount of $9,988. 

v. Professional Services Contract with Keleher Architects for Pickleball Court Design 
in the amount of $29,500. 

vi. Voluntary Abatement Agreement with Habitat for Humanity for the demolition of 
1544 SW Maple, Bartlesville, OK 74003 and execution of Contract Agreement for 
demolition. 

vii. Accept the FY 2021 Assistance to Firefighters Grant. (Verbiage from the agenda 
corrected as presented.) 

 
 

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 

 
 

 d. Approval of Resolution 
  i.  Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2022-2023 

appropriating CDBG-Covid grant revenue for the CDBG-Covid Fund. 
 
 e.  Receipt of Financials 
  i.  Interim Financials for six months ending December 31, 2022.  
 

Mayor Copeland read the consent docket in full. Ms. Roane pulled items 7.b.iv. and 7.b.vii. for 
further discussion. Vice Mayor Curd pulled Item 7.c.ii. for further discussion. Mr. Roszel pulled 
Item 7.c.v. for further discussion. 
 
Ms. Roane moved to approve the consent docket with the exceptions of Items 7.b.iv., 7.b.vii, 
7.c.ii. and 7.cv., seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 
Voting Aye: Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 
 

 Item 7.b.iv  Reappointment of Mr. Jay Jenzen and Ms. Denise Parks to additional three-year 
terms on the Bartlesville History Museum Trust Authority at the recommendation 
of Councilmember Roane. 

 
 Item 7.b.vii.  Reappointment of Ms. Sara Freeman to a three-year term on the City Planning 

Commission at the recommendation of Councilmember Roane. 
 
 In regards to the reappointments of Mr. Jenzen, Ms. Park, and Ms. Freeman, Ms. 

Roane stated her appreciation to them for volunteering and that they are 
outstanding assets to the committees they serve. She also commended all of the 
volunteers who serve on City committees. 

 
 Item 7.c.ii.  Professional Services Contract with BKL Inc. design services on the Park Roads 

and Parking Lot project in the amount of $106,250. 
    
     Vice Mayor Curd stated that he looks forward to the design work on this project. 

He commended the work that has brought this forward and is looking forward to 
its completion. Mr. Bailey added that the project also includes improving park 
roads.       

  
 Item 7.c.v.  Professional Services Contract with Keleher Architects for Pickleball Court 

Design in the amount of $29,500. 
 
 Mr. Roszel stated that he been contacted by many citizens about pickleball and 

has seen how the tournaments bring revenue into the community. At his request, 
Mr. Siemers  provided background on the project and a timeline on the 
completion of the new courts that will located next to the tennis courts at Sooner 
Park. He estimates construction beginning this summer. 

 
Additional discussion also was held on Item 7.c.vii. which is the FY 2021 Assistance to 
Firefighters Grant. It was approved in the previous motion and vote. At the request of Vice 



 
 
 

Mayor Curd, Fire Chief Topping provided information about the grant which is a training grant 
for all incident command staff to improve command efficiency in emergency incidents. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve Items 7.b.iv., 7.b.vii., 7.c.ii., 7.c.v. as presented, seconded 
by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye: Ms. Roane, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 

 
8. Discussion of proposed changes to the City Council ward boundaries and staff 

proposed modifications to update and equalize representation in each ward, and 
direction to staff to make public notice of proposed changes to be set before Council 
for possible adoption by ordinance at the March 6, 2023 City Council meeting. 
Presented by Larry Curtis, Director, Community Development.  
 
The Mayor opened the item stating ward boundaries were studies and changed in 2015 and 
that it was quite a process. He introduced Mr. Curtis as this is his first presentation to the City 
Council. 
 
Mr. Curtis reported that the action requested at this meeting is for the City Council to authorize 
City staff to move forward with the public notice of redistricting wards. Per the City Charter at 
least 30 days notice to the public is required prior to redistricting approval. The map included in 
the Council packet is in flux and input from the Council is welcome and invited. Mr. Curtis went 
on to explain that following a census, the data is used to make an analysis on the ward 
boundaries. After studying the 2020 census, it was determined that there is a substantial 
increase in population in Ward 2 with a potential for more with future development, as well as   
a few other tweaks were needed in the other wards. He concluded that there is no specific 
number determined by State Statue or Charter but a 7% ratio of the total population, plus or 
minus, is generally used as a guideline to establish ward boundaries. 
 
Discussion covered that according to the 2020 Census, Bartlesville population is at 37,245 so 
it shows an optimal value of 7450 in each ward; potential growth is expected to the south and 
east; pockets in Ward 2 that are in the county; how those pockets will not be annexed unless 
requested by property owners, or if they meet certain criteria; annexation laws; and the 
timeline for completion of redistricting. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to authorize staff to provide public notice of proposed changes to re-
establish ward boundaries, seconded by Ms. Roane. 
 
Voting Aye: Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Ms. Roane, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 
 

9. New Business 
 
No new business to report. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

10. City Manager and Staff Reports. 
 
Mr. Bailey reviewed several projects.  
 
The Lee Lake project is getting close to completion. The parking lot will be smaller but will be 
adequate for the facilities. The entrances off of Adams Blvd. will be closed, and the only 
entrance to the Lee Lake area will be off of Silver Lake Road. There will be a soccer practice 
field added to the north, and a cricket field added to the park as well. He provided information 
about the landscaping of the area around the skate park, as well as the added lighting there 
and at Robinwood Park.  
 
New signage has been installed at all of the parks and Pathfinder Parkway with additional 
landscaping around them to be added. The entryway signs wayfinding signs will also be added 
once the locations are State approved with the same design and scheme as the park signage. 
 
The CDBG project for 5th Street Improvements is approximately 50% complete. The project 
includes sidewalks and pavement rehab between Virginia Ave, to Santa Fe Street. Estimated 
completion is the end of April, first of May depending on weather.  
 
The Caney River pump station has been offline due to the inability to get a needed part. A new 
supplier has been contacted so hopefully the part will arrive and the station will up and running 
soon. If not functional before the Spring rains, manual operation of the pump station will need 
to be implemented. 
 
Pathfinder expansion and renovation is ongoing. The preliminary design is still under review 
with STC. 
 
A Douglas Park Shelter, approved in 2020 GO Bond, is to be installed where the old 
playground equipment was located. The new equipment is east of the old site, and the shelter 
would be best utilized close to the new playground equipment. Pathfinder Parkway will be 
connected to Douglas Park as well. It is hoped that the new type of asphalt being tested on 
Minnesota Street may be effective on the Parkways as well. 
 
The City held a successful auction Saturday bringing approximately $160,000 into the General 
Fund, as well as to the appropriate Enterprise Fund related to the equipment sold. 
 
Discussion was held as the bathrooms on Pathfinder about security and making them available 
to the public. Glenn Security has been hired to add automatic locks and motion sensors to help 
secure the restrooms from vandalism and homeless people. Keeping the restrooms locked is 
not desirable, but has been required due to vandalism.  
 
Mr. Bailey concluded that lake levels are a concern at 65%, so citizens are encouraged to 
minimize water usage as much as possible. 
 

11. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Ms. Roane thanked City staff for the work being done on ward redistricting. She also 
acknowledged Keith and Christy McPhail for organizing a warming shelter during a recent cold 
weather event. She encouraged citizens to volunteer and applauded the volunteers who 
assisted those in need recently. 
 



 
 
 

Mr. Roszel thanked the Police and Fire Departments for their work. He added that he felt both 
departments are “a class act”. 
 
Mayor Copeland thanked all of City staff in the various departments for a job well done. 
 

12. There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Copeland adjourned the meeting at 
7:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                 
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

 
 
                                                     
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



 6.a.i.





Agenda Item ___ 
March 2, 2023 

Prepared by Community 
Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take action to reappoint Mr. Quinn Schipper to a three-year term on the City 
Planning Commission.  

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
Mr. Schipper was appointed in March 2021 to fill the unexpired term of Brian Ross, that expires 
in April 2023. Mr. Schipper is eligible for reappointment to a three-year term, expiring in April 
2026. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the reappointment of Mr. Schipper to the City Planning Commission. 

6.b.ii.



Agenda Item ___ 
March 2, 2023 

Prepared by Community 
Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take action to reappoint Ms. Gretchen Wendtland to a three-year term on the City 
Park Board.  

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
Ms. Wendtland has been a great asset to the Park Board, and has agreed to continue for an 
additional three-year term.  
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the reappointment of Ms. Wendtland to the City Park Board. 

6.b.iii.



1 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    
February 22, 2023 

Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 
Water Utilities  

 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of a professional service agreement with Aimright Testing & 
Engineering. for geotechnical services for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Expansion – Caney River Corridor Improvements.   

Attachments: 
 Contract 
 
STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

In September 2020, a professional services contract was awarded to Tetra Tech to 
develop two engineering reports, one for the wastewater plant expansion and the 
other for the Caney River pump corridor conveyance improvements.  An Engineering 
Report provides a 35% level of engineering design as well as the environmental 
review of the proposed improvements.  For the Caney River pump corridor 
Engineering Report, one component of the proposed improvements is to develop a 
flow equalization basin on property the City owns on County Road 2300 east of the 
Caney River.  The Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality requires a 
geotechnical investigation to be submitted with the Engineering Report to account for 
any sub-surface conditions that may impact the design.  

Staff solicited proposals from several firms specializing in geotechnical services.  
Based on their submittal, staff selected Aimright Testing and Engineering as the most 
qualified for the project.  The contract provides that Aimright will provide the 
requested geotechnical services for $4,350.  Funding for the project is through the 
Wastewater Capital Reserve Fund, which has a budget balance of $1,016,316.  Thus, 
there are sufficient funds for the professional services.  The contract and scope of 
services are attached for your review.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of the professional service contract with Aimright Testing 
& Engineering, Inc.  

 

  



 

  

 

 

 
 

 

Construction Materials Testing • Special Inspections • Geotechnical Engineering  
 

 
 

2120 South 130th East Avenue • Tulsa, OK 74134 • (918) 392-8431 • www.aimrighttesting.com 
 

January 27, 2023, revised February 6, 2023 
 
City of Bartlesville 
401 South Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

Attn: Terry Lauritsen, P.E., Water Utilities Director 
 tllaurit@cityofbartlesville.org   

Re: Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services | No. PG132623 
Limestone South FEB – Bartlesville, OK 
NW Corner of W 2300 Rd and N 3950 Rd, Bartlesville, OK 74003 

AIMRIGHT is pleased to present this proposal to perform Geotechnical Engineering Services for 
the proposed construction at the referenced site.  Our proposal is based on our review of the 
provided request for proposal information/documents (RFP), and our experience with similar 
projects. 

We will provide our services on a Lump Sum basis.  If additional testing and/or engineering 
services are required, AIMRIGHT will obtain your approval prior to performing.  We will analyze 
the field and laboratory data and provide an engineering report within ~ 5 weeks after receiving 
notice to proceed. 

For the stated Scope of Services outlined on the following page, the total cost is $4,350.   

Our Scope of Services will not include surveying of boring locations, quantity estimates, 
preparation of plans or specifications, slope stability analysis, or the identification and evaluation 
of environmental aspects of the project site. 

If requested, GPR services may be conducted to scan the boring locations for any below grade 
utilities or obstructions that may not be located by OKIE or appropriate personnel.  The services 
may be estimated at a lump sum cost of approximately $1,100.  AIMRIGHT will obtain 
quote/services from a subcontractor and include in final invoice. 

We have attached a copy of a Standard Proposal Acceptance Form, which, when signed and 
returned to AIMRIGHT, will serve as authorization to proceed with the proposed scope of work.  
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal, and we are looking forward to working with 
you on this project.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please contact us at your 
convenience. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Justin J. Boyd Jr., P.E. 
Engineering Manager 
jboyd@aimrighttesting.com 
(918) 392-8041 

http://www.aimrighttesting.com/
mailto:tllaurit@cityofbartlesville.org
https://www.google.com/maps/place/36%C2%B041'15.1%22N+95%C2%B058'20.9%22W/@36.6875223,-95.974669,889m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x0:0x19ca3df815dcd6c1!7e2!8m2!3d36.6875179!4d-95.9724749
mailto:jboyd@aimrighttesting.com


  

Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Services Page 2 
Limestone South FEB – Bartlesville, OK 
AIMRIGHT Proposal No. PG132623 
January 27, 2023, revised February 6, 2023 

DEVELOPMENT 

We understand that a new flow equalization basin will be constructed on the referenced site.  
The final design has not been completed.  The site is undeveloped with some above/below 
grade infrastructure along the perimeter and mainly grass/soil covered with a few 
trees/shrubbery throughout.   
 
The site is generally level with minimal elevation differences across the site. Cut/fill depths 
have not been finalized; however, we estimate that cut/fill of approximately 1 to 10 feet will 
be required to reach the final site elevations.  
 
The structures are anticipated to be supported by a concrete slab-on-ground and shallow 
foundation system.  Information regarding estimated structural loading conditions was not 
provided; however, we will utilize maximum column loads of 5 to 7 kip and wall loads of 1 kip 
per linear foot in our engineering analyses. 

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

Mobilization 

Prior to mobilizing to the site, we will contact OKIE for utility location.  We do not 
anticipate difficulties in accessing the boring locations.  If there are any suspicions 
of sensitive subsurface obstructions that will not verified by OKIE or appropriate 
personnel, then we recommend utilizing GPR services to assist in clearing the 
boring locations. 

$800 

Field 
Exploration 

As requested, we propose to explore the subsurface conditions by drilling four (4) 
borings across the planned construction footprint to depths of 25 feet (B-1 to B-4) 
or 5 feet into rock or auger refusal, whichever occurs first.   If additional drilling is 
necessary, you will be contacted immediately to authorize.   
 
Representative soil samples will be obtained using a standard 2-inch outside 
diameter split-barrel sampler in general compliance with American Society of 
Testing and Materials (ASTM) D 1586 standards to evaluate the consistency and 
general engineering properties of the subsurface soils.  At regular intervals within 
the borings, split-spoon samples will be visually classified based on texture and 
plasticity.  
 
Field personnel will log the soils encountered and retain the split-spoon samples for 
additional assessment and selective laboratory testing.  If any, groundwater level 
readings will be recorded during and at the completion of drilling.  Upon completion 
of drilling, all borings will be left open for a period of at least 48 hours, but no more 
than 96 hours.  Field personnel will then return to the site to obtain groundwater 
level reading and the boring will be backfilled per OWRB requirements. 

$1,450 
+ 

$375 

Laboratory 
Testing 

We anticipate the laboratory testing program will include in-situ moisture content 
determination, Atterberg limits, particle size analysis, and soil classification 
performed in general accordance with ASTM and American Association of State 
Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) procedures. 

$1,150 

Engineering 
Report 

We will analyze the field and laboratory data and provide an engineering report 
regarding recommendations for, where applicable, site earthwork, fill material, slab-
on-ground, lateral earth pressure parameters, and foundation design in general 
accordance with the RFP. 

$575 

 



BORING LOCATION PLAN
PROPOSAL NO.:  PG132623 PROJECT:  Limestone South FEB – Bartlesville, OK

SOURCE:  Aerial Imagery/Provided Plan CLIENT:  City of Bartlesville

APPROXIMATE BORING LOCATIONS



BORING LOCATION PLAN
PROPOSAL NO.:  PG132623 PROJECT:  Limestone South FEB – Bartlesville, OK

SOURCE:  Aerial Imagery/Provided Plan CLIENT:  City of Bartlesville

APPROXIMATE BORING LOCATIONS



2120 South 130th East Avenue • Tulsa, OK 74134 • (918) 392-8431 • www.aimrighttesting.com

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION and INFORMATION LISTING 

Proposal No. Date: 

Authorization 

Firm Name: 

Address:

Phone #: 

Print Name/Title: 

Signature: 

Project Information 

Name: 

Location: 

Project No.: 

Purchase 
Order No.: 

Manager: 

Invoicing 

Name: 

E-mail:

Address: 

Distribution Copies 

Name: E-mail:

Name: E-mail:

Name: E-mail:

Name: E-mail:

Special Instructions 

Phone #: 

http://www.aimrighttesting.com/


 

 
 

2120 South 130th East Avenue • Tulsa, OK 74134 • (918) 392-8431 • www.aimrighttesting.com 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

SECTION 1:  STANDARD OF CARE 

1.1 The standard of care for all services performed or furnished by AIMRIGHT Testing and Engineering, 
LLC ("Consultant") under this Contract will be that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by 
members of Consultant's profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the 
same geographical region.  Consultant makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Contract or 
otherwise, in connection with the Consultant's services. 

SECTION 2: CONSULTANT’S SERVICES 

2.1 Services.  Consultant shall perform the services described in Consultant’s Proposal in accordance 
with this Contract, which may include construction materials testing services or subsurface exploration 
and geotechnical consultation services. 

2.2 Subsurface Exploration and Geotechnical Consultation Services.  If Consultant’s Proposal includes 
services for subsurface exploration and geotechnical consultation, then this Section 2.2 shall apply: 

(a)  Subsurface Risks.  Client recognizes that special risks occur whenever engineering or related 
disciplines are applied to identify subsurface conditions.  Site exploration may fail to detect unknown or 
undocumented conditions such as sinkholes, underground mines, caverns, hazardous materials, etc.  
Subsurface sampling may also result in unavoidable contamination of certain subsurface areas, or 
bodies of water if unknown contaminated zones exist at the site.  The passage of time also must be 
considered, and Client recognizes that, due to natural occurrence or other direct or indirect human 
intervention at the site or distance from it, actual conditions may quickly change.  Client understands 
that elimination of these risks is not possible and therefore waives any claim against Consultant, for 
injury or loss or property liability that may arise from such subsurface conditions.  

 (b) Site Clearing/Erosion Control.  When clearing of vegetation or benching into the earth is 
required to provide access for exploration equipment, rough-cleared access roads and some felled 
trees may result.  Consultant shall not be responsible for restoring the site to its original condition, and 
Consultant shall not conduct any regrading, revegetation or erosion control.  

 (c) Utilities/Existing Man Made Objects.  Prior to Consultant commencing the services, Client 
shall disclose the presence and accurate location of any utilities and any hidden or obscure man-made 
objects to Consultant in writing.  Consultant shall not be responsible for any damages to subterranean 
structures or objects that were not specifically identified to Consultant in writing prior to Consultant 
commencing the services and/or which were not correctly shown on the plans furnished to Consultant.  
The Client agrees to waive any and all claims against the Consultant Group and to defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the Consultant Group from and against all claims, costs, losses, liabilities, damages, 
and expenses (including, but not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and dispute resolution costs) arising out 
of or relating to damage to subsurface conditions or structures, whether owned by Client or third 
parties. 

 (d) Samples.  Consultant will retain all soil and rock samples for thirty (30) days.  Further storage 
or transfer can be made at the Client's expense upon written request.  

 (e) Construction Estimates/Bid Documents/Plans and Specifications.   

  (1) Any reports prepared by Consultant in connection this Contract are for general 
geotechnical design purposes only, and Client shall not rely on these reports to prepare accurate bids 
or estimates for excavation and rock quantities, dewatering, removal of unsuitable materials or 
excavation support.  An entirely different work scope will be required for quantity estimation purposes. 

  (2) Client agrees to retain Consultant to review the plans and specifications and work 
with other design professionals who are affected by any report furnished by Consultant in connection 
with this Contract.  The review of plans and specifications is to assure that the geotechnical issues 
have been dealt with properly and that geotechnical findings and recommendations are properly 
interpreted and incorporated in design.  

http://www.aimrighttesting.com/


 

 
 

2120 South 130th East Avenue • Tulsa, OK 74134 • (918) 392-8431 • www.aimrighttesting.com 
 

  (3) Misinterpretation or improper use of Consultant's reports by contractors or others in 
preparing cost and quantity estimates or bid documents is a major cause of construction claims.  Client 
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Consultant Group from and against all claims, 
costs, losses, liabilities, damages, and expenses (including, but not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and 
dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to cost or quantity estimates or bid documents 
prepared by others without Consultant's written approval. 

2.3 Time.  Unless specific periods of time or specific dates are specified in this Contract, Consultant’s 
obligation to render services hereunder will be for a period which may reasonably be required for the 
completion of said services.  If in this Contract specific periods of time for rendering services are set 
forth or specific dates by which services are to be completed are provided and if such periods of time or 
dates are changed through no fault of Consultant, the rates and amounts of compensation provided for 
herein shall be subject to equitable adjustment.   

2.4 Changes.  If Client requests changes in the scope of Consultant’s services, the time of 
performance of Consultant’s services shall be adjusted equitably and the rates and amounts of 
compensation provided for herein shall also be subject to equitable adjustment. 

SECTION 3: OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

3.1 All reports, boring logs, field notes, laboratory test data, calculations, estimates, proprietary 
information and other documents or information ("Instruments of Service") prepared, developed, or 
acquired by Consultant shall be the property of Consultant, and Consultant shall retain an ownership 
and property interest therein. 

3.2 Client agrees that all Instruments of Service or other work furnished to the Client or its agents, which 
are not paid for in accordance with the Contract, shall be returned to Consultant upon demand and 
shall not be used by the Client for any purpose whatever. 

3.3 Consultant hereby grants to Client a nonexclusive license to use the Instruments of Service furnished 
by Consultant only for the purpose of the operation and maintenance of the Project for which the 
Instruments of Service were provided.  Client may make and retain copies of the Instruments of Service 
only for use on the Project by Client.  The Instruments of Service are not suitable for reuse by Client or 
others on extensions, modifications, or expansions of the Project or any other project.  Any such reuse 
or modification without written verification or adaptation by Consultant, as appropriate for the specific 
purpose intended, shall be at Client's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to Consultant, or to 
Consultant's officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, or representatives (the "Consultant 
Group"). 

3.4 Client agrees to waive any and all claims against the Consultant Group and to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless the Consultant Group from and against any and all claims, costs, losses, liabilities, 
damages, and expenses (including, but not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and dispute resolution costs) 
arising out of or relating to Client's use of the Instruments of Service in violation of the Contract. 

SECTION 4: PAYMENT TERMS 

4.1 Client shall pay Consultant for the services performed or furnished on the basis set forth on the 
Information Sheet. 

4.2 Invoices will be submitted monthly to Client and upon Consultant’s completion of services.  Invoices 
are due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt.  If Client fails to make any payment due 
Consultant for services or expenses within thirty (30) days after receipt of Consultant's invoice, the 
amounts due Consultant will be increased at the rate of 1.5% per month (or the maximum rate of 
interested permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day.  In addition, Consultant may, after giving 
seven (7) days written notice to Client, suspend the services until Consultant has been paid in full all 
amounts due.  Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal. 

4.3 In the event of a disputed or contested invoice, only that portion so contested may be withheld from 
payment, and Client shall pay to Consultant the undisputed portion. 

4.4 Client agrees to pay all collection costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred by 
Consultant in collecting or attempting to collect any past due account. 

http://www.aimrighttesting.com/


 

 
 

2120 South 130th East Avenue • Tulsa, OK 74134 • (918) 392-8431 • www.aimrighttesting.com 
 

SECTION 5: INSURANCE & LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

5.1 Consultant shall procure and maintain the following insurance coverage: 

 (a) Worker's Compensation Insurance     statutory limit 

 (b) Employer's Liability      $1,000,000 

 (c) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance 

   General Aggregate      $2,000,000 

   Bodily injury & property damage   $1,000,000 per occurrence 

 (d) Automobile Liability Insurance    $1,000,000 per occurrence 

 

5.2 Limitation of Professional Liability.  Notwithstanding anything in the Contract to the contrary, and to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, Client agrees that the total liability of the Consultant Group to Client 
and anyone claiming by, through, or under Client for any cost, loss, or damages caused by the acts or 
omissions of Consultant shall not exceed $100,000.00 or Consultant's total fee for the services, 
whichever is more. 

5.3 Waiver of Consequential Damages.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, neither 
Consultant nor Client shall be liable to the other for any consequential, special, or indirect losses or 
damages, whether arising in contract, warranty, tort, strict liability or otherwise, including but not limited 
to losses of use, profits, business, reputation or financing. 

SECTION 6: RIGHT OF ENTRY 

6.1 Client and/or property owner shall provide access to and make all provisions for right of entry to 
Consultant and all equipment necessary for Consultant to perform the services.  It is understood by 
Client that in the normal course of services some damage may occur, the correction of which is not part 
of this Contract.  Client shall not be responsible whatsoever for any such damage or for the correction 
of any damage. 

SECTION 7:  SAMPLING OR TEST LOCATION 

7.1 Unless otherwise specified in writing, the Consultant’s fees set forth on the Information Sheet do 
not include costs associated with surveying the site for the accurate horizontal and vertical locations of 
boreholes, test pits or other field tests performed.  Client shall be responsible for such additional costs.  
Field tests or boring locations described in Consultant's report or shown on sketches are based on 
information furnished by others or estimates made in the field by Consultant's representatives.  Client 
acknowledges and agrees that such dimensions, depths, or elevations are approximations only. Client 
shall not rely upon such information, and Consultant makes no warranties, express or implied, as to this 
information. 

SECTION 8:  MONITORING OF FIELD ACTIVITIES 

8.1 The presence of Consultant's field personnel, either full-time or part-time, at the Project will be for the 
purpose only of providing periodic observation and field testing of specific aspects of the Project as 
authorized by the Client.  Client acknowledges and agrees that Consultant will not be responsible for 
the supervision or direction of the contractor's work, or the work of contractor's employees, agents, or 
subcontractors. The presence or absence of Consultant's field representatives, or Consultant's 
observation or testing, shall not relieve the contractor of its responsibilities to perform its work in 
accordance with the plans and specifications.  Consultant shall not have any control over, charge of, or 
responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety 
precautions and programs in connection with the contractor's work or of any other persons or entities 
performing portions of the work at the Project. 

8.2 The observations and tests performed by Consultant’s field representative are valid only for the time 
and location the test is performed.  The Client acknowledges that outside factors such as construction 
activity, weather and the passage of time can alter condition of the material tested or observed. 

8.3 Client agrees that the contractor will be solely and completely responsible for working conditions at the 
Project, including safety of all persons and property during performance of its work, and compliance 
with OSHA regulations, and that these requirements will apply continuously and not be limited to 

http://www.aimrighttesting.com/


 

 
 

2120 South 130th East Avenue • Tulsa, OK 74134 • (918) 392-8431 • www.aimrighttesting.com 
 

normal working hours.  Client acknowledges and agrees that Consultant will not be responsible for job 
or site safety on the Project, and that Consultant does not have the duty or right to stop the work of the 
contractor.  

8.4 Client waives any and all claims against the Consultant Group and agrees to indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless the Consultant Group from and against all claims, costs, losses, liabilities, damages, and 
expenses (including, but not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and dispute resolution costs) arising out of or 
relating to contractor's failure to perform its work in accordance with plans and specifications or 
contractor’s failure to comply with the applicable safety requirements and regulations. 

SECTION 9:  HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES 

9.1 Client agrees to comply with all applicable laws related to Hazardous Substances.  Consultant shall not 
be responsible in any way for any Hazardous Substances uncovered, revealed, or discovered at the Project 
site. 

9.2 The term "Hazardous Substance" means any substance or material: (i) the presence of which requires 
management, reporting, investigation or remediation under any federal, state or local law, statute, rule, 
regulation, ordinance, order, action, policy or common law; (ii) which is or becomes regulated by any federal, 
state or local governmental authority, including without limitation, any substance or waste material which is 
defined or listed as a "hazardous waste," "acutely hazardous waste," "extremely hazardous substance," 
"restricted hazardous waste," "industrial waste," "hazardous substance," "hazardous material," "pollutant" 
"hazardous air pollutant, "criteria pollutant," "volatile organic compound," "priority pollutant," "special waste," 
"SARA 313 chemical" or "contaminant" under any law; (iii) which contains gasoline, diesel fuel or other 
petroleum hydrocarbons or a petroleum derivative; (iv) which contains polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs"), 
asbestos or urea formaldehyde; or (v) which poses an unreasonable risk of injury to human health or the 
environment. 

9.3 If any Hazardous Substance is discovered at the Project site, the Client shall be solely responsible for 
all costs and expenses associated with the discovery of such Hazardous Substance.  To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the Client shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Consultant Group from and against 
any and all claims, costs, losses, liabilities, damages, and expenses (including, but not limited to, all 
attorneys’ fees and dispute resolution costs) arising out of or related to Consultant’s performance of the 
services in an area where a Hazardous Substance is discovered. 

SECTION 10:  DISPUTES 

10.1 In the event of a dispute arising out of or relating to this Contract or the services to be rendered 
hereunder, Client and Consultant agree to attempt to resolve such disputes in the following manner: 

 (a) Amicable Resolution. The parties agree to first attempt to resolve such disputes amicably 
through direct negotiations between the appropriate representatives of each party. 

 (b) Mediation.  If such negotiations are not fully successful, the parties agree to attempt to 
resolve any remaining disputes by mediation conduced in accordance with the Construction Industry 
Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association currently in effect. The parties shall share the 
mediator's fee and any filing fees equally.  The mediation shall be held in Oklahoma. Agreements 
reached in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

 (c) Arbitration.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the Contract and the subject matter 
hereof are substantially connected with and involved with interstate commerce.  Any controversy, 
dispute or claim arising out of or related to the Contract, or the breach thereof, not otherwise resolved in 
accordance with this Section shall be settled by arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association.  The arbitration hearing shall be held in 
Oklahoma.  The provisions of this section to arbitrate and any judgment rendered upon the award by 
the arbitrator or arbitrators may be enforced in any court having jurisdiction thereof. The prevailing party 
shall be entitled to have its reasonable attorneys' fees and related costs and expenses paid by the non-
prevailing party. 

http://www.aimrighttesting.com/


 

 
 

2120 South 130th East Avenue • Tulsa, OK 74134 • (918) 392-8431 • www.aimrighttesting.com 
 

SECTION 11:  THIRD PARTY CLAIMS 

11.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Client agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
Consultant Group from and against any and all third party claims whatsoever (including, but not limited 
to, all attorneys’ fees and dispute resolution costs) arising from any act, error, or omission of Client 
relating to the Project.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the Client from and against any and all third party claims whatsoever (including, but 
not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and dispute resolution costs) arising from any act, error, or omission of 
Consultant relating to the Project.   

SECTION 12:  TERMINATION 

12.1 This Contract may be terminated by either party upon seven (7) days written notice in the event of 
substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with this Contract, and provided that the 
defaulting party has not cured such failure within five (5) days after receiving such written notice. In the 
event of termination, Consultant shall be paid for services performed to the termination date plus 
reasonable termination expenses.  

12.2 In the event Client terminates or suspends Consultant's services for three (3) months or more prior to 
Consultant's completion of all reports contemplated by this Contract, Consultant may complete such 
analyses and records as are necessary to complete its files and may also complete a report on the 
services performed to the date of termination or suspension.  Client shall be responsible for the 
expenses of such termination or suspension, which shall include, without limitation, all costs of 
Consultant to complete such analyses, reports or records.  

12.3 Consultant may terminate the Contract by written notice to Client if Client fails to pay Consultant's 
undisputed invoices in the manner required by this Contract, if such failure continues for a period of ten 
(10) days after written notice is given to Client.   

SECTION 13:  ASSIGNS 

13.1 Neither the Client nor Consultant may delegate, assign, sublet or transfer any obligation or interest in 
this Contract without the written consent of the other party. 

SECTION 14:  CERTIFICATIONS, GUARANTEES AND WARRANTIES 

14.1 Consultant shall not be required to sign any documents, no matter by whom requested, that would 
result in Consultant having to certify, guarantee or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence 
Consultant cannot ascertain. Client shall not make resolution of any dispute with Consultant or payment 
of any amount due to Consultant in any way contingent upon signing any such certification, guarantee, 
or warranty.  

SECTION 15: MISCELLANEOUS 

15.1 Governing Law. This Contract shall be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is 
located. 

15.2 Notices. Any notice required under this Contract shall be in writing, addressed to the appropriate party 
at its address on the signature page and given personally, by certified mail (return receipt requested), or by 
Federal Express, UPS, or other nationally recognized overnight carrier.  All notices shall be effective upon the 
date of receipt. 

15.3 Waiver. Non-enforcement of any provision by either party shall not constitute a waiver of that 
provision nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Contract. 

15.4 Headings.   This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts and by the parties 
hereto on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all 
the counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument.  All signatures need not appear on 
the same counterpart. 

15.5 Severability.  The determination of the invalidity of all or any provision in this Contract shall not render 
the remaining provisions void or unenforceable, and this Contract shall thereafter be construed as though 
such invalid provision were not a part hereof. 

 
 

http://www.aimrighttesting.com/


 6.c.ii.





6.c.iii.







6.c.iv.











6.c.v.

















6.c.vi.































6.d.i.









Agenda Item ___ 
February 28, 2023 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the seven months ending January 31, 2023.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for January 31, 2023 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for January 2023; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for January 31, 2023. 

 6.e.i.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Billie Roane
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Seven Months Ended January 31, 2023

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%
70.0%
80.0%

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

 -
 500,000

 1,000,000
 1,500,000
 2,000,000
 2,500,000
 3,000,000
 3,500,000
 4,000,000

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%
70.0%
80.0%

 -
 1,000,000
 2,000,000
 3,000,000
 4,000,000
 5,000,000
 6,000,000
 7,000,000
 8,000,000

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

 -
 500,000

 1,000,000
 1,500,000
 2,000,000
 2,500,000
 3,000,000
 3,500,000
 4,000,000

FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 16,457,122$  9,599,988$     10,522,464$  -$                   10,522,464$  63.9% 10,240,104$  64.7%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,851,300       1,079,925       935,629          -                     935,629          50.5% 796,866          64.2%
Licenses and Permits 266,700          155,575          198,526          -                     198,526          74.4% 216,725          95.3%
Intergovernmental 739,100          431,142          451,115          -                     451,115          61.0% 3,550,322       102.0%
Charges for Services 521,300          304,092          321,425          -                     321,425          61.7% 336,778          66.3%
Court Costs 139,800          81,550            112,555          -                     112,555          80.5% 79,768            63.1%
Police/Traffic Fines 525,000          306,250          241,225          -                     241,225          45.9% 220,771          43.0%
Parking Fines 54,800            31,967            28,630            -                     28,630            52.2% 26,470            42.2%
Other Fines 67,000            39,083            40,739            -                     40,739            60.8% 37,217            56.4%
Investment Income 100,000          58,333            58,333            -                     58,333            58.3% 58,333            35.0%
Miscellaneous Income 396,400          231,233          203,495          -                     203,495          51.3% 486,615          78.4%
Transfers In 9,170,941       5,349,716       5,349,721       -                     5,349,721       58.3% 3,019,680       62.0%

Total 30,289,463$  17,668,854$  18,463,857$  -$                   18,463,857$  61.0% 19,069,649$  68.8%

Expenditures:
General Government 8,138,777$     4,747,620$     4,557,205$     144,864$      4,702,069$     57.8% 4,393,557$     61.8%
Public Safety 15,764,748     9,196,103       9,104,086       216,205        9,320,291       59.1% 8,440,305       70.0%
Street 1,843,488       1,075,368       1,093,248       (48,611)         1,044,637       56.7% 935,491          62.4%
Culture and Recreation 3,494,816       2,038,643       1,869,962       22,765          1,892,727       54.2% 1,778,085       64.3%
Transfers Out 4,011,107       2,339,812       2,339,832       -                     2,339,832       58.3% 1,947,493       66.0%
Reserves 910,925          531,373          -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 34,163,861$  19,928,919$  18,964,333$  335,223$      19,299,556$  56.5% 17,494,931$  66.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 4,261,660$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (500,476)         

Ending Fund Balance 3,761,184$    

58% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 5,499,094$     3,207,805$     3,502,601$  -$                   3,502,601$     63.7% 3,246,429$     65.1%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds 45,000,000     26,250,000     -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,800             17,967             165,362        -                      165,362          536.9% 100,204          492.2%

Total 50,529,894$  29,475,772$  3,667,963$  -$                   3,667,963$    7.3% 3,346,633$    66.9%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,704,296$     1,577,506$     1,569,676$  1,103,220$  2,672,896$     98.8% 2,391,659$     97.2%
Wastewater Maint 902,048          526,195          390,642        4,309             394,951          43.8% 445,569          68.2%
BMA Expenses 28,400             16,567             13,954          -                      13,954             49.1% -                        N.A.
Transfers Out 1,647,574       961,085          958,174        -                      958,174          58.2% 890,177          61.8%
Reserves 83,049             48,445             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 5,365,367$    3,129,798$    2,932,446$  1,107,529$  4,039,975$    75.3% 3,727,404$    81.8%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 1,859,443$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 735,517        

Ending Fund Balance 2,594,960$  

58% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,339,739$  6,614,848$     7,421,945$     -$                    7,421,945$     65.5% 7,108,728$     67.6%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       0.0%
Debt Proceeds 7,500,000       4,375,000       -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       2,683               -                       2,683               N.A. 7,168               709.7%

Total 18,839,739$  10,989,848$  7,424,628$    -$                    7,424,628$    39.4% 7,115,896$    67.6%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 3,379,179$     1,971,188$     2,251,475$     87,777$         2,339,252$     69.2% 1,756,432$     63.2%
Water Administration 385,958          225,142          216,210          3,070              219,280          56.8% 225,365          66.7%
Water Distribution 2,088,999       1,218,583       968,280          71,917            1,040,197       49.8% 941,152          69.7%
BMA Expenses 10,447,970     6,094,649       2,925,940       (2,710,219)     215,721          2.1% 1,303,678       43.7%
Transfers Out 2,569,382       1,498,806       1,498,812       -                       1,498,812       58.3% 1,388,650       62.0%
Reserves 174,039          101,523          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 19,045,527$  11,109,891$  7,860,717$    (2,547,455)$  5,313,262$    27.9% 5,615,277$    58.0%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 9,871,860$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (436,089)         

Ending Fund Balance 9,435,771$    

58% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 5,614,957$     3,275,392$     3,350,619$       -$                   3,350,619$     59.7% 3,041,318$     69.2%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 181,103          45,669            91,359               -                     91,359            50.4% 96,185            69.0%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       0.0%

Total 5,796,060$    3,321,061$    3,441,978$       -$                   3,441,978$    59.4% 3,137,503$    68.8%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,449,968$     2,012,481$     1,877,485$       301,255$      2,178,740$     63.2% 2,073,394$     70.5%
Transfers Out 2,647,446       1,544,344       1,544,346         -                     1,544,346       58.3% 1,317,860       74.9%
Reserves 118,724          69,256            -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,216,138$    3,626,081$    3,421,831$       301,255$     3,723,086$    59.9% 3,391,254$    72.1%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 271,101$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 20,147               

Ending Fund Balance 291,248$          

58% of Year Lapsed

2022-23 Fiscal Year 2021-22 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,830,242     1,143,778    62%
E-911 Fund 1,207,233     701,399       58%
Special Library Fund 88,000          121,999       139%
Special Museum Fund -                     32,176          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund 504,038        450,830       89%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     -                    N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 106,006        43,505          41%
Golf Course Memorial Fund -                     2,275            N/A
CDBG-COVID -                     71,679          N/A
ARPA 3,186,219     3,186,294    100%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     -                    N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 3,000            1,956            65%

Debt Service Fund 4,156,550     3,411,368    82%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,095,683     2,025,706    65%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     26,850          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     -                    N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 11,400          47,880          420%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     1,609            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund 196,000        -                    0%
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 543,441        302,522       56%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 49,871          29,096          58%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 60,921          35,541          58%
Municipal Airport Operating 391,174        357,130       91%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 100,287        64,136          64%
Health Insurance Fund 3,781,152     2,348,215    62%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          44,926          60%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,722,643     1,004,883    58%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 7,296,227     4,569,408    63%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     -                    N/A

58% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 4,536,236     1,191,003    26%
E-911 Fund 1,228,358     681,855        56%
Special Library Fund 226,500        65,339          29%
Special Museum Fund 41,500           17,811          43%
Municipal Airport Fund 745,481        686,007        92%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 451,492        35,884          8%
Restricted Revenue Fund 346,646        27,478          8%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 34,307           28,078          82%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                     N/A
ARPA 3,609,713     2,105,668    58%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 27,653           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 12,147           1,334            11%

Debt Service Fund 4,156,550     1,944,501    47%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 4,529,560     1,922,023    42%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 97,435           83,155          85%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 784,684        -                     0%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 75,594           1,804            2%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 51,963           -                     0%
Community Development Block Grant Fund 196,000        42,133          21%
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund 2,636             -                     0%
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 32,031           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 317,014        67,054          21%
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 669,535        319,699        48%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 385,860        -                     0%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 2,109,080     43,716          2%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 9,345,050     4,051,903    43%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 628,362        380,225        61%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 51,041           28,410          56%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 64,020           30,549          48%
Municipal Airport Operating 622,990        372,071        60%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        93,270          22%
Health Insurance Fund 4,155,209     2,527,087    61%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 443,559        8,816            2%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 10,211,008   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 7,736,297     1,918,499    25%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,185             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

58% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 2,976,150                 302,775        3,278,925     
E-911 Fund 42,136                       20,519          62,655           
Special Library Fund 300,317                    44,230          344,547        
Special Museum Fund 129,805                    14,365          144,170        
Municipal Airport Fund 258,862                    (139,164)      119,698        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 611,905                    (163,597)      448,308        
Restricted Revenue Fund 371,829                    13,498          385,327        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 31,449                       (19,357)         12,092           
CDBG-COVID (71,679)                     71,679          -                     
ARPA 2,186,371                 1,080,626    3,266,997     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619                         -                     7,619             
Neighborhood Park Fund 27,722                       -                     27,722           
Cemetery Care Fund 8,234                         622               8,856             

Debt Service Fund 3,383,622                 1,466,867    4,850,489     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,179,987                 (38,897)         3,141,090     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 125,314                    13,904          139,218        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 805,587                    -                     805,587        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 74,009                       46,311          120,320        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 52,981                       1,609            54,590           
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                                 (2,278)           (2,278)           
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund 22,372                       (22,372)         -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 7,686                         -                     7,686             
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,886                         -                     3,886             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 12,444                       -                     12,444           
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 72,338                       -                     72,338           
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 52,547                       -                     52,547           
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 46,204                       -                     46,204           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund 152,711                    (112,095)      40,616           
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 657,231                    (126,595)      530,636        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 397,717                    -                     397,717        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 1,079,080                 (27,577)         1,051,503     
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 9,370,025                 (1,786,460)   7,583,565     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 56,999                       (28,428)         28,571           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 23,650                       (20,877)         2,773             
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 14,708                       (12,839)         1,869             
Municipal Airport Operating 246,207                    (2,977)           243,230        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 248,341                    (19,864)         228,477        
Health Insurance Fund 291,251                    (167,658)      123,593        
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 477,623                    3,650            481,273        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 10,211,008               1,004,883    11,215,891   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 12,762,925               2,275,719    15,038,644   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 7,813                         -                     7,813             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

58% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item 6.f.i.



Agenda Item 6.f.ii.



Agenda Item #___ 
3/1/2023 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
      Engineering Department 

 
 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2022-2023-014 for the Minnesota Rehabilitation 
Project. 
 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Construction Plans 

 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

One of the discretionary projects included in the 2020 Issuance of the 2018 General Obligation 
Bond (GO Bond) is the Minnesota Rehabilitation project.  The project consists of an asphalt 
rehabilitation of Minnesota from Washington Blvd. to Madison Blvd.  The east half of the 
project will consist of processing the existing asphalt material in place and compacting, followed 
by a 4” thick asphalt overlay.  The west half of the project will consist of an asphalt leveling 
course, topped with an asphalt impregnated geotextile, topped with a 2” asphalt overlay.  The 
west 100 feet and east 100 feet of the project at the connections with Washington Blvd. and 
Madison Blvd., respectively, will be completely reconstructed with a new asphalt paving section.  
All items of work were included in the Base Bid with no Bid Alternates. The base bid for this 
project consists of replacing existing gravel parking lots at Cooper Dog Park and south of east 
soccer fields with paved and curbed parking lots, installing a new connecting drive between 
Cooper Dog Park and Daniels Fields, and removing two of existing drives off of Adams Blvd, 
leaving only the main drive at the traffic light.  Three bid alternates were also included as part of 
the bid: 

 
B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and Southwest 
Construction News, seven (7) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and three (3) 
contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Two (2) contractors submitted a bid.  The 
base bids were as follows: 

 

    Paragon Contractors, LLC (Tulsa, OK)   $489,385.55 

Brent Bell Construction (Nowata, OK)   $417,757.37 

7.



 

   

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line item prices, and arithmetic.  Each bid 
has all of the necessary components.  Minor mathematical errors were found in both bids, but the 
errors did not change the order of the bids.    

 

C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

$587,000 was originally budgeted for the project in the 2021 Issuance of the 2018 GO Bond.  
$43,716 has been utilized for design services, leaving $543,284 for the construction portion of 
the project.  The low bid by Brent Bell Construction is $125,526.63 under the available budget.     

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Brent Bell Construction is a construction firm specializing in asphalt roadway projects.  They 
have completed projects successfully for the City of Bartlesville in the past and have provided 
information confirming they have the bonding capacity and technical expertise to complete this 
project. 

Staff recommends awarding the base bid to Brent Bell Construction in the amount of 
$417,757.37.   

 
 
 
              
                        Council Member      Date 
 

/s/ Trevor Dorsey March 1, 2023



# Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost

1 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION 178 CY $78.73 $14,013.94 $40.00 $7,120.00 $59.37 $10,566.97 29.00$                 $5,162.00

2 MUCK EXCAVATION & SELECT FILL 90 CY $111.95 $10,075.50 $100.00 $9,000.00 $105.98 $9,537.75 98.00$                 $8,820.00

3 AGGREGATE BASE TYPE A 115 CY $135.24 $15,552.60 $56.00 $6,440.00 $95.62 $10,996.30 86.00$                 $9,890.00

4 PROCESSING EXISTING BASE & SURFACE, METHOD B 2461 LF $10.10 $24,856.10 $8.00 $19,688.00 $9.05 $22,272.05 12.00$                 $29,532.00

5 SEPARATOR FABRIC 738 SY $8.84 $6,523.92 $2.00 $1,476.00 $5.42 $3,999.96 4.00$                   $2,952.00

6 TRAFFIC BOUND SURFACE COURSE TYPE E 421 TON $35.70 $15,029.70 $30.00 $12,630.00 $32.85 $13,829.85 58.00$                 $24,418.00

7 SUPERPAVE, TYPE S3(PG 64-22 OK) 87 TON $197.99 $17,225.13 $150.00 $13,050.00 $174.00 $15,137.57 127.00$               $11,049.00

8 SUPERPAVE, TYPE S4(PG 64-22 OK) 1875 TON $108.81 $204,018.75 $105.00 $196,875.00 $106.91 $200,446.88 138.00$               $258,750.00

9 SUPERPAVE, TYPE S5(PG 64-22 OK) 312 TON $144.00 $44,928.00 $129.00 $40,248.00 $136.50 $42,588.00 150.00$               $46,800.00

10 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY (H.E.S.) 56 SY $124.16 $6,952.96 $125.00 $7,000.00 $124.58 $6,976.48 98.00$                 $5,488.00

11 REMOVAL OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT 519 SY $7.77 $4,032.63 $9.00 $4,671.00 $8.39 $4,351.82 12.00$                 $6,228.00

12 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE DRIVEWAY 56 SY $62.84 $3,519.04 $30.00 $1,680.00 $46.42 $2,599.52 14.00$                 $784.00

13 MOBILIZATION 1 LSUM
$10,181.66 $10,181.66 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $13,840.83 $13,840.83 57,730.00$          $57,730.00

14 CONSTRUCTION STAKING LEVEL II 1 LSUM
$9,733.32 $9,733.32 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $7,616.66 $7,616.66 11,500.00$          $11,500.00

15 (SP) CONTRACTORS QUALITY CONTROL 1 LSUM
$13,139.98 $13,139.98 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $10,319.99 $10,319.99 9,775.00$            $9,775.00

16 FLAGGER   6 SD $2,366.97 $14,201.82 $400.00 $2,400.00 $1,383.49 $8,300.91 288.00$               $1,728.00

17 CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL          1 LSUM
$7,421.66 $7,421.66 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $5,960.83 $5,960.83 9,200.00$            $9,200.00

18  PAVEMENT GRID 5577 SY $7.67 $42,775.59 $6.81 $37,979.37 $7.24 $40,377.48 7.00$                   $39,039.00

19 PATCHING 25 SY $207.05 $5,176.25 $100.00 $2,500.00 $153.53 $3,838.13 288.00$               $7,200.00

20 ENGINEER'S ALLOWANCE 1 EA $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 20,000.00$          $20,000.00

$489,358.55 $417,757.37 $453,557.96 $566,045.00

Engineer's Estimate

Brent Bell Construction, LLC
Average of BidsP.O. Box 28

Nowata, OK 74048

TOTAL BID AMOUNT 

Project:  Minnesota Rehabilitation - Highway 75 to Madison Boulevard

Bid Date:  February 21,  2023

Project No.:  BTO22774

Paragon Contractors, LLC

2108 N. 129th East AVE

Tulsa, OK 74116

Client:  City of Barlesville

Freese & Nichols, Inc.
4200 E. Skelly Drive, Suite 410
Tulsa, OK 74135
BID TABULATION



MINNESOTA STREET

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

PLAN  OF  PROPOSED

5,286.53 FT. 1.001
0.000

MI.
MI.
MI.1.001

0.00 
ROADWAY LENGTH
BRIDGE LENGTH
PROJECT LENGTH
EQUATIONS  :
EXCEPTIONS : NONE

NONE

LOCATION MAP

P.
E.

 N
O

 : 
XX

XX
X(

01
)

FOR SURVEY CONTROL DATA,
SEE SURVEY DATA SHEETS

FOR INDEX OF SHEETS
AND STANDARDS

FT.

N:\IF\Drawings\1. General\BTO22774 TITLE.dwg

RIGHT-OF-WAY FENCE

CONTROLLED ACCESS

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES - NEW

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES - EXISTING

DRAINAGE STRUCTURES - NEW

DRAINAGE STRUCTURES - IN PLACE

OILWELL

BUILDINGS

TELEPHONE & TELEGRAPH

POWER LINES

GRADE LINES

BASE LINE

EXISTING ROADS

EXISTING FENCE

GROUND LINE

SECTION LINES

QUARTER SECTION LINES

RANGE & TOWNSHIP

RAILROADS

PROPOSED ROAD

  1'' = 2,640'

  1'' = 10'

  1'' = 100'

  1'' = 100'

SCALES

PLAN

PROFILE HOR.

VER.

LAYOUT MAP

CONVENTIONAL SYMBOLS

ADT  2020
V

=  360
=  35MPH

DESIGN DATA

PROPOSED FENCE

PROJECT  NO.   BTO22774
PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

MINNESOTA STREET: WASHINGTON BOULEVARD (HWY 75) TO MADISON BOULEVARD

WASHINGTON  COUNTY

PREPARED BY:
FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC.

DATE

DAVID R. CROSS , P.E.
OKLA. LIC. NO. 17569

LI
C

EN
SE

D 

ROFE

O KLA

SSIONAL 
EN

G
IN

EER

H OMA

P

17569

DAVID R.
 CROSS

INDEX OF SHEETS
1 TITLE SHEET
2-4 TYPICAL SECTION
5 PAY QUANTITIES AND NOTES
6-11 PLAN SHEETS
12 DETOUR PLAN

2019 OKLAHOMA STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION GOVERN, APPROVED BY THE U.S.
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION, DECEMBER 18, 2019.

WATER LINE

GAS LINE

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

STORM DRAIN

THE FOLLOWING STANDARD DRAWINGS SHALL BE
REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT

ROADWAY:

PSE-2-1

TRAFFIC:

TCS-1-1
TCS-2-1
TCS-3-1
TCS-4-1
TCS-5-1
TCS-6-1
TCS-7-1
TCS-9-1

  TCS-14-1

01/20/2023

NS397
EW017

EW018

EW019

MINNESOTA ST

M
AD

IS
O

N
 B

LV
D

TO DE
W

EY

T26N

4200 E. Skelly Drive, Suite 410
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135
Phone - (539) 444-8677
Web - www.freese.com
Certificate of Authorization: CA#511
Expiration Date: 06/30/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
+2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRES. R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1''

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA.10+00.00 BEGIN CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA. 62+86.53 END CONSTRUCTION

08152
Image



DRIVING LANEDRIVING LANE

PAVEMENT REQUIREMENT

 PAVT. STRUCTURE DRIVING LANES OUTSIDE SHOULDER LEGEND

SURFACE COURSE
2" SUPERPAVE, TYPE S4 (PG 64-22 OK) TBSC TYPE E WEDGE A

TACK COAT B

TYPICAL NO.2
STA. 37+00.00 TO STA. 61+80.95

2% 2%

VARIESVARIES

CL SURVEY & SECTION LINE

LIMITS OF SUBGRADE
VARIES 21' TO 25'

TRAFFIC BOUND SURFACE COURSE TYPE E TRAFFIC BOUND SURFACE COURSE TYPE E

8" PROCESS EXISTING BASE & SURFACE, METHOD B

A B

VARIES 10' TO 12' VARIES 10' TO  12'

DRIVING LANEDRIVING LANE

PAVEMENT REQUIREMENT

 PAVT. STRUCTURE DRIVING LANES OUTSIDE SHOULDER LEGEND

SURFACE COURSE

2" SUPERPAVE, TYPE S4 (PG 64-22 OK) TYPE E WEDGE A

PAVEMENT GRID B

TACK COAT C

1" SUPERPAVE, TYPE S5 (PG 64-22 OK) D

TYPICAL NO.1
STA. 11+04.28 TO STA. 37+00.00

2% 2%

VARIESVARIES

CL SURVEY & SECTION LINE

LIMITS OF SUBGRADE
VARIES 21' TO 25'

TRAFFIC BOUND SURFACE COURSE TYPE E TRAFFIC BOUND SURFACE COURSE TYPE E

EXISTING PAVEMENT A B

VARIES 10' TO 12' VARIES 10' TO 12'

C D

PAVEMENT SAFETY EDGE (TYP.)

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

TY
PI

C
AL

.d
w

g

 

 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTIONS



2%

DRIVING LANE 5'

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

B

EXISTING DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT REQUIREMENT

 PAVT. STRUCTURE 5' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY LEGEND

REPLACE  DRIVEWAY 6" CONCRETE A

BASE COURSE 8" SUBGRADE, METHOD B B

EXISTING DRIVEWAY CONCRETE C

C

A

VARIES
2%

DRIVING LANE

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

PAVEMENT REQUIREMENT

 PAVT. STRUCTURE 5' ASPHALT DRIVEWAY LEGEND

DRIVEWAY
3" OR 4" SUPERPAVE TYPE S4 (PG 64-22 OK)  WEDGE A

TACK COAT B

EXISTING DRIVEWAY ASPHALT C

VARIES

TYPICAL CONCRETE DRIVEWAY
REMOVAL & REPLACEMENT

TYPICAL ASPHALT DRIVEWAY
REMOVAL & REPLACEMENT

5'

EXISTING DRIVEWAY

C

A
B

 DRIVEWAYREPLACE DRIVEWAY
MILL 1.5" FOR
ASPHALT TIE-IN

VARIES 10' TO 12'VARIES 10' TO '12
DRIVING LANEDRIVING LANE

2% 2%

VARIES

CL SURVEY & SECTION LINE

LIMITS OF SUBGRADE
VARIES 21' TO 25'

TRAFFIC BOUND SURFACE COURSE TYPE E TRAFFIC BOUND SURFACE COURSE TYPE E

PAVEMENT REQUIREMENT

 PAVT. STRUCTURE 10'-0" DRIVING LANES OUTSIDE SHOULDER LEGEND

SURFACE COURSE

2" SUPERPAVE, TYPE S4 (PG 64-22 OK) TYPE E WEDGE A

TACK COAT B

3" SUPERPAVE, TYPE S3 (PG 64-22, OK) C

8" AGGREGATE BASE, TYPE A D

BASE COURSE
SEPARATOR FABRIC E

8" SUBGRADE, METHOD B F

TYPICAL NO.3
STA. 10+04.28 TO STA. 11+04.28
STA. 61+80.95 TO STA. 62+80.95

A
B

C
D

VARIES

E
F

2' SEPARATOR FABRIC OVERLAP2' SEPARATOR FABRIC OVERLAP

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

TY
PI

C
AL

.d
w

g

 

 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTIONS



2%

DRIVING LANE

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT REQUIREMENT

 PAVT. STRUCTURE 5' GRAVEL DRIVEWAY LEGEND

DRIVEWAY TBSC TYPE E A

EXISTING DRIVEWAY GRAVEL B

VARIES

TYPICAL GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

5'

EXISTING DRIVEWAY

B

A

2'-0" TYP.

7"

7" H.E.S.
(HIGH EARLY

STRENGTH)
CONCRETE

TACK COAT

SIMPSON GLASPHALT
PAVEMENT GRID

1" SUPERPAVE
TYPE S5 (PG 64-22 OK)

2" SUPERPAVE
TYPE S4 (PG 64-22 OK)

SAW CUT
FULL DEPTH

3" OVERLAY

FULL-DEPTH
PAVEMENT
REPAIR

6" ODOT TYPE 'A' AGGREGATE BASE COMPACTED
TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY

6" SUBGRADE ODOT METHOD 'B' COMPACTED TO 95%
STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY

GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR FABRIC
(ODOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION SECTION 712.05)

PATCHING DETAIL
 NTS

MUCK EXCAVATION

PAVING (PER PLANS)

AGGREGATE BASE (PER PLANS)

IF AREAS ARE DISCOVERED
REQUIRING MUCK
EXCAVATION, IMMEDIATELY
CONTACT ENGINEERING
INSPECTOR FOR SITE VISIT.
ALL MUCK EXCAVATION
WORK SHALL BE
PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH 2009
ODOT STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS SECTION
202.04 (2).

GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR FABRIC
(TO MEET ODOT SPECIFICATION
SECTION 712.05)

MUCK EXCAVATION DETAIL
              NTS

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

TY
PI

C
AL

.d
w

g

 

 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTIONS



$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

PA
Y 

Q
U

AN
TI

TI
ES

 A
N

D
 N

O
TE

S.
dw

g

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

PAY ITEM NOTES

(R-20) ESTIMATED AT 145 LBS. PER CU. FT.

(R-23) IF USED, PRIME COAT SHALL BE APPLIED AT AN ESTIMATED RATE OF 0.35 GAL. PER SQ. YD.
WHEN APPLIED TO SUBGRADE, AND 0.25 GAL. PER SQ. YD. WHEN APPLIED TO AGGREGATE
BASE. THE ACTUAL CUTBACK PRIME COAT REQUIRED FOR PLACEMENT OPERATIONS WILL BE
DETERMINED BY THE CONTRACTOR, AND SHALL CONSIDER THE RESIDUE FROM DISTILLATION
PERCENTAGE SHOWN IN SECTION 708.03 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

(R-24) PRICE BID TO INCLUDE COST OF 208 GALLONS OF TACK COAT, MEETING THE REQUIRMENTS
OF SECTION 407 OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

(R-26) ESTIMATED AT 112 LBS. PER SQ. YD. PER I" THICK.

(R-40) TO BECOME THE PROPERTY OF AND BE DISPOSED OF BY THE CONTRACTOR IN A
MANNER APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

(TC-25) ALL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL WILL BE IMPLEMENTED ACCORDING TO
CONSTRUCTION PLANS, AND INSTALLED IN A MANNER APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER,
IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER VI OF THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL
DEVICES, (CURRENT EDITION), AND COMPLIANT WITH APPLICABLE O.D.O.T.
STANDARD INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND SUBSEQUENT REMOVAL OF ALL
NECESSARY CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS
REQUIRED FOR COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.

ALL SIGNS AND BARRICADES, WHICH ARE SHOWN WITH TYPE 'A' LIGHTS IN THE
STANDARD DRAWINGS SHALL HAVE THE CORRESPONDING LIGHT ATTACHED DURING
NON-DAYLIGHT HOURS.

(TC-58) INCLUDED IN THIS ITEM IS THE COST OF PROVIDING TWO (2) FLAGGERS FOR A 24
HOUR PERIOD OF TIME. DURING NON-DAYLIGHT HOURS THE FLAGGER STATIONS
SHALL BE ADEQUATELY LIGHTED TO PROVIDE A SAFE WORK AREA FOR FLAGGERS.
COST OF THIS LIGHTING WILL BE INCLUDED IN THE PRICE BID FOR FLAGGER.

(1) PRIME COAT COST INCLUDED IN SUPERPAVE PAY ITEMS. ONLY TO BE APPLIED TO
AREAS OF COMPLETED SUBGRADE, AGGREGATE BASE, OR PROCESSED BASE/SURFACE
NOT COVERED WITH SUPERPAVE WITHIN 72 HOURS.

(2) INCLUDES THE COST OF SAW CUTTING PAVEMENT, REMOVAL OF EXISTING PAVEMENT,
EXCAVATION, 6" SUBGRADE METHOD B, SEPARATOR FABRIC, 6" AGGREGATE BASE,
AND 7" PC CONCRETE PAVEMENT.

(3) INCLUDES THE COST OF EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL WITH SELECT FILL, 8" SUBGRADE
METHOD B, AND GEOTEXTILE FABRIC.

(4)
INCLUDES THE COST OF COLD MILLING ASPHALT PAVEMENT TIE-INS AT ASPHALT
DRIVEWAYS.

(5) PAVEMENT GRID SHALL BE GLASPHALT G BY SIMPSON STRONG-TIE MEETING THE
FOLLOWING SPECIFICATIONS:
GENERAL:

WHEN STORING, KEEP GLASPHALT G WRAPPED FOR PROTECTION AGAINST MOISTURE,
WEATHER, AND EXTENDED ULTRAVIOLET EXPOSURE.  ELEVATE THE ROLLS AND
PROTECT WITH A COVER.

SEE PLANS FOR COVERAGE AREA FOR GLASPHALT G.

MATERIAL:

PAVEMENT INTERLAYER GRID SHALL BE GLASPHALT G BY SIMPSON STRONG-TIE

1.THE PAVEMENT INTERLAYER GRID JOINTS SHALL HAVE SLIP KNOT CONNECTION OF
LONGITUDINAL AND TRANSVERSE INTERSECTIONS

2.MATERIAL SHALL BE LABELED ON EACH ROLL, WITH THE PRODUCT NAME, TYPE OF
MATERIAL, AND THE LOT OR BATCH IDENTIFICATION.

TABLE OF MATERIAL PROPERTIES

PAVEMENT INTERLAYER GRID MATERIAL PROPERTIES

•TENSILE STRENGTH (ASTM D 4595) 8.2 KIP/FT [120 KN/M], MIN

•ULTIMATE ELONGATION (ASTM D 6637) 3.0% +/- 0.3%, MAX

•FIBER STRANDS PER LENGTH 15.5 STRANDS PER FT.

•PRE-SATURATED BITUMEN CONTENT 175G/M2, MIN

EXECUTION/INSTALLATION:

1.INSTALLER SHALL HAVE LETTER FROM MANUFACTURE OF TRAINING ON
INSTALLATION PROCEDURE. THE CREW INSTALL SHALL HAVE UNDERWENT THE
MANUFACTURES TRAINING. SIMPSON WILL PROVIDE TRAINING.

2.MANUFACTURES REPRESENTATIVE TO BE PRESENT FOR THE FIRST DAY OF
INSTALLATION. SEE CONTACT FOR SCHEDULING.

3.APPLY THE ASPHALT BINDER (EMULSION) (TYPE) TACK COAT PER SPECIFICATION.

4.LAP LONGITUDE SEAM 4” MINIMUM.

5.LAP END JOINT 4” MINIMUM. STAGGER END JOINTS BY 5 FT, MINIMUM.

6.AS GRID IS UNROLLED, HEAT VIA DUAL PROPANE BURNERS, APPLIED TO THE FILM
SIDE OF THE GRID.  IMMEDIATELY AFTER, APPLY PRESSURE TO GRID PRESSING INTO
BASE VIA STEEL ROLLER.

7.PLACE PAVING GRID ON CLEAN UNIFORM SURFACE.

8.CONTROL TRAFFIC, DO NOT OPEN TRAFFIC TO PUBLIC UNTIL ASPHALT OVERLAY IS
PLACED ATOP GRID

9.SIMPSON’S LAYDOWN EQUIPMENT INCLUDES HEATING ELEMENT AND ROLLERS.  A
FRONT LOADER (BY CONTRACTOR) WITH FORKS IS REQUIRED TO OPERATE LAYDOWN
EQUIPMENT.  CONTACT SIMPSON TO COORDINATE RENTAL OF LAYDOWN
EQUIPMENT.

COST:

1.COST SHALL INCLUDE INSTALLATION AND MATERIAL.

2.COST SHALL BE ON COVERAGE AREA IN SQYD UNITS, PER PLANS.

CONTACT:
EVAN HAMMEL, (720)237-6346
SIMPSON STRONG-TIE
2505 ENTERPRISE CIR
WEST CHICAGO, IL 60185
1(800) 925-5099

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE OKLAHOMA UNDERGROUND FACILITIES DAMAGE
PREVENTION ACT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OKLAHOMA ONE-CALL
SYSTEM, INC. 48 HOURS PRIOR TO BEGINNING EXCAVATION. OKLAHOMA ONE-CALL
SYSTEM, INC. "CALL OKIE" 1-800-522-6543 OR 811

FOR PROJECTS THAT INCLUDE WIDENING AND/OR RESURFACING, THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL SCHEDULE OPERATIONS TO MINIMIZE POTENTIAL DROP-OFF HAZARDS AND
SHALL SUBMIT A SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS TO THE RESIDENT
ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL BEFORE OPERATIONS BEGIN. ANY PORTION OF THE
CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS, SUCH AS SUPERPAVE LAYING OPERATIONS,
EXCAVATION FOR PAVEMENT WIDENING, OR EXTENSION OF ROADWAY STRUCTURES,
SHALL BE LIMITED TO ONE SIDE AT A TIME, AND THE PROCEDURES OUTLINED IN THE
PAVEMENT DROP-OFF TREATMENT STANDARD PDT-2 (LATEST REVISION) SHALL BE
IMPLEMENTED. ONLY THAT AMOUNT OF OPEN TRENCH WILL BE ALLOWED THAT CAN
BE SURFACED IN 1(ONE) DAY'S TIME WITHOUT APPROVAL BY THE ENGINEER. LIGHTS,
SIGNS AND BARRICADES SHALL BE MOVED AS WORK PROGRESSES.
IN ORDER TO ALLEVIATE DUST CONDITIONS DURING GRADING OPERATIONS AND
BEFORE PAVEMENT WORK IS COMPLETED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SPRINKLE
GRADING AT INTERVALS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER. ALL COST TO BE INCLUDED IN
OTHER ITEMS OF WORK.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE OPEN TRENCH DRAINED. COST TO BE INCLUDED IN
OTHER ITEMS OF WORK.

T.B.S.C. SURFACES SHALL BE SPRINKLED WITH WATER AND ROLLED WITH A
PNEUMATIC ROLLER IN A MANNER APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

THE USE OF A MATERIAL TRANSFER VEHICLE (MTV) WILL NOT BE REQUIRED FOR THIS
PROJECT.

PAY QUANTITIES
ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITIES

202(A)  2200 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION CY 178
202(B)  2300 MUCK EXCAVATION                                                                                    (3) CY 90
303(A)  1200 AGGREGATE BASE TYPE A CY 115
311(B)   6300 PROCESSING EXISTING BASE & SURFACE, METHOD B LF 2,461
325         0100 SEPARATOR FABRIC SY 738
402(E)   2600 TRAFFIC BOUND SURFACE COURSE TYPE E                                       (R-20) TON 421
411(B)   1330 SUPERPAVE, TYPE S3(PG 64-22 OK)                         (1)(R-23)(R-24)(R-26) TON 87
411(C)   1430 SUPERPAVE, TYPE S4(PG 64-22 OK)                    (1)(4)(R-23)(R-24)(R-26) TON 1,875
411(D)   1530 SUPERPAVE, TYPE S5(PG 64-22 OK)                                         (R-24)(R-26) TON 312
610(B)   5300 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY (H.E.S.) SY 56
619(B)   6364 REMOVAL OF ASPHALT PAVEMENT                                                   (R-40) SY 519
619(B)   6380 REMOVAL OF CONCRETE DRIVEWAY                                                 (R-40) SY 56
641         2110 MOBILIZATION  LSUM 1
642(B)   3300 CONSTRUCTION STAKING LEVEL II  LSUM 1
643         4170 (SP) CONTRACTORS QUALITY CONTROL LSUM 1
880(I)    7000 FLAGGER                                                                                  (TC-25)(TC-58)   SD 6
880(J)    7110 CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL                                                (TC-25)  LSUM 1
SPECIAL PAVEMENT GRID                                                                                         (5) SY 5,577
SPECIAL PATCHING                                                                                                     (2) SY 25
SPECIAL ENGINEER'S ALLOWANCE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAY QUANTITIES AND NOTES



Guy Guy
GM

GM
PP

PP

PP PPTPED
TPED TPED

WM WM
WM

E. MINNESOTA ST.
ASPHALT

CONCRETE

GRAVEL GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

CONCRETE

2-Wire

2-Wire 2-Wire

2-Wire

4-Wire

3-Wire

5-Wire

Guy

Guy
Guy

GRS
PP

PP

PP

3-Wire

3-Wire

BRITTANY LEE CANAVAN
WARRANTY DEED
BK. 1161 PG. 2431

CHARLES W. BORDNER AND
EMMA BORDNER, TRUSTEES OF
THE CHARLES W. AND EMMA L.
BORDNER REVOCABLE LIVING

TRUST
BK. 906 PG. 2206

JAMES D. ANDERSON AND
DOLORES A. ANDERSON

WARRANTY DEED
BK. 1062 PG. 2615

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1853

10' Overhead Easement
Public Service Company
Book 939, Page 1127

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1855

REPLACE 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY (H.E.S.)
REPLACE 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY (H.E.S.)

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

33' R/W

4694.72
Railroad Spike Found

ARV

Guy

Guy

PP w/DIP PP w/DIP & Light
PP w/Light & TransformerWM

WV

E. MINNESOTA ST.
ASPHALT

GRAVEL

CONCRETE

2-
W

ire

1-Wire

2-Wire 2-Wire1-Wire

1-Wire

Guy Guy PP
PP

PP W/DIP

7-Wire

1-Wire 1-Wire

6-Wire

MARK FLORA
WARRANTY DEED
BK. 1135 PG. 1374

ROSA CHANG HAYWOOD AND
JAME' CHANG HAYWOOD

QUIT CLAIM DEED
BK. 1162 PG. 3825

16.5' STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company

Book 989, Page 1849

REPLACE 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY (H.E.S.)

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

 BOP STA 10+04.28
 N=651330.99
 E=2573227.49
 BEGIN PROJECT

BEGIN TYPICAL SECTION #1
BOP STA 11+04.28
 N=651321.67
 E=2573327.68

33' R/W

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

PL
AN

.d
w

g

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 15+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 20+00 SEE SHEET 77

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 15+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA. 10+00 TO STA. 20+00



Gas Service

PP

PP w/DIP & Transformer PP w/Transformer

TPED TPED

FL=713.59
12" PVC
W.

E. MINNESOTA ST.
ASPHALT

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

GRAVEL
ASPHALT

TPED2-Wire

1-Wire

1-Wire

1-Wire

Guy

PP
PPTop of

3" Gas
Line
EL=713.79

Top of
3" Gas
Line
EL=713.84

Top of
3" Gas
Line
EL=712.89

TPED
5-Wire

3-Wire

1-Wire
1-Wire

5-Wire

GM
PPPP w/Transformer

PP w/Transformer
TPED 3-Wire

3-Wire

3-Wire

2-Wire

2-Wire

JKOSTER KREW, LLC
QUIT CLAIM DEED
BK. 1173 PG. 206

33' STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1857

REPLACE W/ SUPERPAVE TYPE S4

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E
REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

ASPHALT

33' R/W

GM PP
PP PPTPED

FL=710.04
12" STL
E.

FL=710.66
12" STL
W.

FL=712.08
12" PVC
E.

GRAVEL

ASPHALT ASPHALT

2-Wire

5-Wire
5-Wire

FL=706.95
18" RCP
N.

FL=706.83
18" RCP
S.

Guy

GM
PPPP w/Transformer

3-Wire3-Wire

1-Wire

JIM ANDERSON AND DEE
ANDERSON

WARRANTY DEED
BK. 1142 PG. 1109

JACK L. CARTER, TRUSTEE OF
THE JACK L. CARTER
REVOCABLE TRUST

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
BK. 906 PG. 2091

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1855

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1859

JAMES D. ANDERSON AND
DOLORES A. ANDERSON

WARRANTY DEED
BK. 1062 PG. 2615

REPLACE W/ SUPERPAVE TYPE S4

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

REPLACE W/ SUPERPAVE TYPE S4

33' R/W

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

PL
AN

.d
w

g

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 25+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 20+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 25+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 30+00 SEE SHEET 88

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA. 20+00 TO STA. 30+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'



3
700.11Mag Nail Found

E. MINNESOTA ST.
ASPHALT

PP PPTop of
3" Gas
Line
EL=697.77

Top of
3" Gas
Line
EL=698.86

Top of
3" Gas
Line
EL=698.52

Top of
3" Gas
Line
EL=698.40

Top of 3"
Gas Line
EL=699.03

5-Wire 5-Wire

FL=693.82
60" STL
S.W.

FL=694.30
60" STL
N.E.

PP

Top of
6" STL
EL=697.91

Top of
6" STL
EL=698.02

3-Wire3-Wire

40' Grant of Right of Way
Kansas Power and Light Company
Book 855, Page 533

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1859

33' R/W

BEGIN TYPICAL SECTION #2
STA 37+00.00
N=651381.77
E=2575922.73

GRAVEL

PP
Top of
3" Gas

EL=712.89

Top of
3" Gas
LIne
EL=709.60

Top of
3" Gas
Line
EL=704.85

Top of
3" Gas
Line
EL=703.34

Top of
3" Gas
Line
EL=700.24

TPED
TPED

5-Wire 5-Wire

GM (No Meter)
GM PPPP PP w/TransformerTPED

3-Wire
3-Wire

1-Wire

JACK L. CARTER, TRUSTEE OF
THE JACK L. CARTER
REVOCABLE TRUST

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
BK. 906 PG. 2091

33' STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1859

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

33' R/W

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

PL
AN

.d
w

g

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 35+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 30+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 35+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 40+00 SEE SHEET 99

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA. 30+00 TO STA. 40+00



T

E. MINNESOTA ST.
ASPHALT

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

Gas Service

PP
PP

PP w/DIP & Transformer

TMH
TR=712.74

TPED
TPED

WM
5-Wire

1-Wire

GM (No Meter)
PPPP

3-Wire3-Wire

JACK L. CARTER, TRUSTEE OF
THE JACK L. CARTER REVOCABLE

TRUST
GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

BK. 906 PG. 2089

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1859

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

33' R/W

500
709.683/8" IPSC (Native Plains)

501709.09Mag Nail Set

PP PP

2-Wire

5-Wire 5-Wire

2-Guy

PP

PP

PP
3-Wire

1-Wire

JACK L. CARTER, TRUSTEE OF
THE JACK L. CARTER
REVOCABLE TRUST

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
BK. 906 PG. 2091

20' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 983, Page 1909

33' R/W

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

PL
AN

.d
w

g

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 45+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 40+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 45+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 50+00 SEE SHEET 1010

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA. 40+00 TO STA. 50+00



FL=705.49
18"
CMP W.

FL=707.74
18"
CMP W.

Top of
18"
CMP
EL=706.70

E. MINNESOTA ST.
ASPHALT

GRAVEL

CONCRETE

GM

ICV

ICV

PP
TPED

5-Wire
5-Wire

1-Wire

1-Wire

GM

PP

PPTPED

1-Wire

3-Wire3-Wire

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1851

JAMES DOYAL VEIT
QUIT CLAIM DEED
BK. 1137 PG. 2724

REPLACE 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY (H.E.S.)

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

33' R/W

Top of
36"
CMP
EL=706.19

Top of
36"
CMP
EL=706.21

GRAVEL

PP
PP

5-Wire 5-Wire

PPPP w/DIP & Transformer

3-Wire

3-Wire

JACK L. CARTER, TRUSTEE OF
THE JACK L. CARTER
REVOCABLE TRUST

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED
BK. 906 PG. 2091

33' STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY

40' Grant of Right of Way
Kansas Power and Light Company
Book 855, Page 533

10' Right of Way Easement,
Public Service Company
Book 989, Page 1859

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

33' R/W

FOR 20' CENTERED ON PIPE
USE TYPICAL SECTION #1

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

PL
AN

.d
w

g

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 55+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 50+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 55+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA. 50+00 STA. 62+86.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 60+00 SEE SHEET 1111



T

T

2
717.245/8" IPF

Top of
12" STL
EL=713.23Top of

12" STL
EL=712.89

Top of
15"
CMP
EL=715.51

Top of
15"
CMP
EL=715.06

E. MINNESOTA ST.
ASPHALT

GRAVEL
GRAVEL

GuyPP
PP

PP w/DIP

TMH
TR=717.99

TMH
TR=717.62

TPED

TS

UM (Gas)

UM (Gas)

1-Wire

4-Wire

FL=715.32
15" RCP
E.

FL=716.15
15" RCP
W.

GRAVEL
GuyGuy

Guy

Guy

GM PP

PP

PP PP w/Transformer
PP w/Transformer

WM

WM

2-Wire

1-Wire

2-Wire4-Wire3-Wire

4-Wire1-Wire

3-Wire

Guy
GuyPPUM (Gas)

UM (RWD #5)

WATER RWD #5

JAMES DOYAL VEIT
QUIT CLAIM DEED
BK. 1137 PG. 2724

REPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE EREPLACE W/ TBSC TYPE E

EOP STA 62+80.95
N=651432.72
E=2578503.17
END PROJECT

BEGIN TYPICAL SECTION #3
EOP STA 61+80.95
N=651417.67
E=2578403.44

33' R/W

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
. G

en
er

al
\B

TO
22

77
4 

PL
AN

.d
w

g

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

LEGEND

ASPHALT PROCESS EXISTING AND
OVERLAY
(PER TYPICAL NO.2)

ASPHALT REMOVE & REPLACE
(PER TYPICAL NO.3)

REMOVE & REPLACE CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

EXISTING R/W

GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

PAVEMENT GRID
(PER TYPICAL NO.1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCHLINE STA 60+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
STA. 60+00 TO END

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'



MINNESOTA ST

M
AD

IS
O

N
 B

LV
D

Robinwood Park Sooner Park

Johnstone Park
Adams Municipal Golf Course

R11-4
60"x30"

TUXEDO BLVD

HW
Y 

75
 / 

N
E 

W
AS

HI
N

GT
O

N
 B

LV
D

M4-9R
24"x30"

MINNESOTA ST.

M4-9L
24"x30"

M4-9L
24"x30"

M4-9L
24"x30"

M4-9L
24"x30"

M4-9R
24"x30"

M4-9R
24"x30"

W20-3
36"x36"

W20-3
36"x36"

W20-2D
36"x36"

W20-2D
36"x36"

MINNESOTA ST.

MINNESOTA ST.

MINNESOTA ST.

MINNESOTA ST.

MINNESOTA ST.

MINNESOTA ST.

MINNESOTA ST.

MINNESOTA ST.

N
E 

BI
SO

N
 R

D

DURHAM RD

TUXEDO BLVD

SE ADAMS BLVD SE ADAMS BLVD

DURHAM RD

MINNESOTA ST

BA
RT

LE
S R

D

$F
IL

EL
$

N
:\I

F\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\8
. T

ra
ffi

c\
BT

O
22

77
4 

D
ET

O
U

R
.d

w
g

CITY OF BARTLESVILLEDESIGN

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

SQUAD

COUNTY STREET PROJECT NO. SHEET NO.

LEGEND

TYPE III
BARRICADES

CONSTRUCTION SIGN

FLOW OF TRAFFIC

CONSTRUCTION AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CPK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BTO22774

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETOUR PLAN



8.





RESOLUTION NO. 3665 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 
OKLAHOMA (THE “CITY”) APPROVING THE INCURRENCE OF 
INDEBTEDNESS BY THE BARTLESVILLE EDUCATION AUTHORITY (THE 
“AUTHORITY”) ISSUING ITS EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES LEASE 
REVENUE BONDS (BARTLESVILLE PUBLIC SCHOOLS PROJECT) SERIES 
2023 (THE “BONDS”); PROVIDING THAT THE ORGANIZATIONAL 
DOCUMENT CREATING THE AUTHORITY IS SUBJECT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE BOND INDENTURE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 
OF SAID BONDS; WAIVING COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND AUTHORIZING 
THE SALE OF SAID BONDS BY THE AUTHORITY AT NEGOTIATED SALE 
AND AT A PRICE LESS THAN PAR; APPROVING THE FORMS OF A 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT AND AN OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT RELATING TO THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, AND CONTAINING 
OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING THERETO. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 
OKLAHOMA: 

SECTION 1.  Indebtedness Authorized.  The Bartlesville Education Authority (the 
“Authority”) is hereby authorized to incur an indebtedness by the issuance of its Educational Facilities 
Lease Revenue Bonds (Bartlesville Public Schools Project) Series 2023, or similarly styled 
obligations, in the amount of not-to-exceed $11,000,000.00 (referred to herein as the “Bonds”), 
according to the terms and conditions of a Bond Indenture, as may be supplemented and amended, 
all by and between the Authority and BOKF, NA, as Trustee (collectively, the “Bond Indenture”), 
provided that said Bonds shall never constitute a debt of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (the 
“City”).   

SECTION 2.  Organizational Document Subject to Note Indenture.  The organizational 
document creating the Authority is hereby made subject to the terms of the Bond Indenture 
authorizing the issuance and securing the payment of the Note as more fully described in Section 1 
hereof. 

SECTION 3.  Waiving Competitive Bidding; Approval of Sale Proceedings.  The waiving of 
competitive bidding for the sale of the Bonds and the sale of said Bonds by the Authority is hereby 
approved, all pursuant to 60 O.S. 176(G), to either (a) a financial institution as designated in a 
Certificate of Determination of the Authority to be executed prior to closing the Bonds, or (b) an 
underwriting firm (the “Underwriter”), pursuant to a Bond Purchase Agreement by and between the 
Authority and the Underwriter; provided however, Underwriter’s discount shall not exceed 0.75% 
of the principal amount of the Bonds, plus appropriate expenses.  The Mayor or Vice Mayor is 
authorized to approve any changes or additions to said Bond Purchase Agreement.  The purchaser (or 
Underwriter), principal amount, principal installments, interest rate, and maturity date shall be set 
forth in a Certificate of Determination to be executed by the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the 
Authority prior to closing the Bonds. 

Agenda Item 9.



2 

SECTION 4.  Official Statement and Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  The Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement and Official Statement pertaining to the Bonds, forms of which are 
incorporated herein by reference, are hereby approved with such additions, omissions and changes 
as may be approved by the persons executing the same, and the Mayor and City Clerk (or in their 
absence or incapacity, the Vice Mayor and Deputy Clerk, respectively) are authorized to execute 
the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Mayor, Vice Mayor or City Manager is authorized 
to sign the Official Statement for and on behalf of the City. 

SECTION 5.  Authorizing Execution.  The Mayor or Vice Mayor and City Clerk or Deputy 
City Clerk at the closing of the above referenced bond issue is hereby authorized to execute, separately 
or jointly, and deliver such documents and take such other action as may be necessary or appropriate 
in order to effectuate the issuance, execution and delivery of the Bonds, including specifically, but 
not limited to, the Bond forms, tax or tax compliance documents, closing certificates, continuing 
disclosure or other security or securities-related documents, disbursement orders, or any other letter, 
representation or certification otherwise necessary and attendant to the issuance and delivery of the 
Bonds; to approve and make any changes to the documents approved by this Resolution, for and on 
behalf of the City, the execution and delivery of such documents being conclusive as to the approval 
of any changes contained therein by the City; and to execute, record and file any and all the necessary 
financing statements, security instruments, including but not limited to the documents approved 
hereby, and to consummate the transaction contemplated hereby. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

  



3 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 6TH DAY OF MARCH, 2023. 
 
   CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
 
(SEAL)  By: ___________________________________ 
    Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 City Clerk 
  



4 

 CERTIFICATE 
 OF 
 CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City 
of Bartlesville, Oklahoma. 
 
 I further certify that the City Council of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, held a Regular 
Meeting at 5:30 o’clock p.m., on March 6, 2023, after due notice was given in full compliance with 
the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act. 
 
 I further certify that attached hereto is a full and complete copy of a Resolution that was passed 
and approved by said City Council at said meeting as the same appears in the official records of my 
office and that said Resolution is currently in effect and has not been repealed or amended as of this 
date. 
 
 I further certify that below is listed those Council members present and absent at said meeting; 
those making and seconding the motion that said Resolution be passed and approved; and those voting 
for and against such motion: 
 
 PRESENT:  
 
 
 ABSENT:  
 
 
 MOTION MADE BY:  
 
 MOTION SECONDED BY:  
 
 AYE:  
 
 
 NAY:  
 
 
 WITNESS MY HAND THIS 6TH DAY OF MARCH, 2023. 
 
  CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
 
  ________________________________________ 
(SEAL) City Clerk 

 



Agenda Item ___ 
February 27, 2023 

Prepared by Jason Muninger. CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 
An ordinance granting a franchise agreement to PSO/AEP and calling for an election. 
 
Attachments: 

 
Ordinance 
Other supplementary information  
 Resolution calling for election 
 Special Election Proclamation 

Bartlesville Acceptance of Franchise 
 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 

The City of Bartlesville is nearing the end of its previous 25-year non-exclusive 
Franchise agreement with AEP/PSO.  It is time for the City to renew its agreement for 
the next 25 years. The content of this agreement remains very similar to our past 
agreements and maintains the 2% franchise fee.  This Fee Generates roughly between 
$650,000 and $750,000 annually. There is some volatility in the amounts received, 
however dependent on extreme heat and extreme cold. Where this agreement differs 
from years past will be section 10 of the ordinance, which grants the City the ability at 
any time through the life of the agreement to present to the voters an additional 1% 
facility fee.  If enacted this fee would generate roughly $325,000-$375,000. At this 
time, there are no plans to ask for a vote on this additional fee. 
 
The enactment of this franchise agreement has a specific process and will require a vote 
of the Citizens of the City of Bartlesville on MY 9TH, 2023.  As such, there will also be 
a resolution calling for the election and other supplementary documents which are 
attached. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Budgetary impact will either be no impact, if the new agreement is enacted, or the loss of 
$650,000-$750,000 if not enacted. 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Staff Recommends approval of the Ordinance and all associated steps to enact and bring 
this vote before the people. 

10.



   

1 
 

#2861989v1 

         ORDINANCE   NO.  _________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TO PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF 
OKLAHOMA (PSO) THE RIGHT, PRIVILEGE, AND NON-
EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR TWENTY-FIVE YEARS TO BUILD, 
EQUIP, MAINTAIN, EXTEND, OWN, AND OPERATE A SYSTEM 
FOR THE MANUFACTURE, TRANSMISSION, DISTRIBUTION, 
SALE, AND CONTROL OF ELECTRICITY AND 
COMMUNICATIONS CIRCUITS FOR ITSELF AND OTHERS IN, 
UNDER, OVER, ACROSS, THROUGH AND ALONG ANY AND ALL 
OF THE PRESENT AND FUTURE STREETS, ALLEYS, AVENUES, 
WAYS, AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES AND GROUNDS  WITHIN 
THE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON 
COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND GRANTING TO PSO THE RIGHT TO 
OPERATE AN ELECTRIC BUSINESS PURSUANT TO 
REASONABLE RULES AND REGULATION BY THE OKLAHOMA 
CORPORATION COMMISSION; WITH PSO AGREEING TO 
CHARGE LEGAL RATES FOR THE ELECTRIC SERVICE;  AND, IF 
POSSIBLE, TO SELL AND DELIVER TO THE CITY ALL 
ELECTRICITY AND SERVICES REQUESTED BY IT; PROVIDING 
FOR PAYMENT TO THE CITY BY PSO OF A MONTHLY FEE ON 
GROSS RECEIPTS FROM THE DELIVERY AND SALE OF 
ELECTRICITY; AND PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the City of Bartlesville (“City”), located in Washington County 

("Grantor"), grants to Public Service Company of Oklahoma, an Oklahoma corporation, its 

successors and assigns ("Grantee"), the right, power, and authority to use the streets, alleys, 

avenues, ways, and other public places and grounds of Grantor (“Public Rights of Way”) as 

now constituted and as it may be extended or created in the future for the purpose of building, 

equipping, maintaining, extending, owning, and operating any plants, systems and 

appurtenant facilities for the manufacture, transmission, distribution, sale, and control of 

electricity for lighting, heating, and power purposes as well as for any other purposes as 

electric energy may be used, in and to Grantor and to the public generally and to transmit 

electric energy and communicate and distribute information (audio, video and data) for itself 

or others over distribution and transmission lines throughout the City to the ultimate customer 

and to connections and systems in other localities with poles, wires, conduits, substations, 



   

2 
 

#2861989v1 

meters, appliances, and apparatus necessary and convenient for the plant and system upon, 

across, over and under the Public Rights of Way of the City.  

 SECTION 2.  All rights and privileges granted by this Ordinance will extend and be 

in force between Grantor and Grantee for a term of twenty-five years from and after 

acceptance of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 3.  All provisions of this Ordinance that obligate or benefit Grantee will 

also obligate or benefit its successors and assigns, and the word “Grantee,” as used in this 

Ordinance, will include and mean not only Public Service Company of Oklahoma, but also 

its successors and assigns for which assignment consent is given whether the assignment is 

for the whole or only a partial assignment.  Subject to the provisions of this subsection, 

Grantee may assign all or a portion of its rights and obligations under the provisions of this 

Ordinance and franchise. 

 SECTION 4.  Grantee shall have the right to make and enforce reasonable rules and 

regulations for the sale, delivery, control and metering of its electric energy and the conduct 

of its business and may reserve in these rules and regulations the right to disconnect service 

to customers where Grantee's meters, wires, switches, appliances, or apparatus are found to 

have been tampered with, or when customers have failed to pay for electricity or services.  

Grantee shall have the right to enter upon customers’ premises at all reasonable times or at 

any hour if for the sole purpose of restoring service, for the purpose of inspecting, repairing, 

or reading meters or for removing wires, meters, switches and appliances, and to perform 

other activities necessary to provide and maintain electric service so long as these rules and 

regulations are not in conflict with law or the rules and regulations from time to time made by 

the Oklahoma Corporation Commission or by other regularly constituted regulatory authority 

having jurisdiction over Grantee. 

 Grantor gives Grantee permission to cut down, trim, remove, and otherwise control 

using herbicides or tree growth regulators any trees, branches, vegetation or brush upon and 

overhanging the Public Rights of Way of the City in the vicinity of Grantee’s electric facilities 

where trees and other vegetation, in Grantee’s reasonable opinion, may endanger the safety 

of Grantee’s personnel or interfere with the construction, operation, or maintenance of 

Grantee’s facilities or ingress or egress to, from or along the Public Rights of Way.   



   

3 
 

#2861989v1 

 SECTION 5.  Grantee covenants and agrees that in consideration of this franchise and 

contract, it will maintain electric distribution service in and to Grantor, unless excused by 

statute, under the rules and orders imposed upon it by the Corporation Commission of the 

State of Oklahoma, or by other regularly constituted regulatory authority having jurisdiction 

over Grantee. By accepting this franchise and contract, however, Grantee does not guarantee 

continuous service at all times and will be relieved temporarily from its obligation to furnish 

services continuously in case of any disability caused by act of God or by the elements, or 

terrorism, strikes or lock-outs, or by any temporary breakdown or failure of machinery, 

transmission or distribution lines, appliances or apparatus or by other causes beyond Grantee’s 

reasonable control so long as Grantee exercises due diligence in the repair of its machinery, 

transmission or distribution lines, appliances and apparatus, and makes best efforts to resume 

operation without unnecessary delay. 

 Grantee covenants and agrees to hold Grantor free and clear of any claims for damages 

or otherwise to the extent caused by Grantee’s negligence in the construction or operation 

carried on under this contract and franchise.  Regardless, it is understood and agreed that in 

the event of claims that are presented or prosecuted against the City, Grantee will have the 

right to defend against and to settle and discharge all claims in any manner as Grantee may 

see fit.  To this end, Grantor agrees to notify Grantee of any claims and to furnish to Grantee 

all related information and assistance as may be necessary in the defense of the claims. 

 SECTION 6.  In performing the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, franchise and 

contract, Grantor gives Grantee the continuing right, privilege, and option to manufacture 

electric energy within Grantor’s corporate limits and to transmit electric energy over 

transmission lines from other plants and to distribute electric energy from some central 

location at proper voltage; together with the right to transmit electric energy from and through 

the City to other localities for itself or others.  Grantee is authorized to allow others who have 

a permitted right given by Grantor, or as may otherwise be authorized or required by 

applicable law, to attach telecommunications and cable facilities to its poles and structures on 

such conditions as it considers just and reasonable and in compliance with applicable law. 

 SECTION 7.  During the life of this franchise and for and in consideration of 

acceptance of the franchise by Grantee, Grantor agrees that Grantee may charge and collect 

from Grantor and its inhabitants a rate or rates for its service or the service of others that must 



   

4 
 

#2861989v1 

be compensatory and reasonable at all times, and if regulated, subject to the rules and orders 

as are in effect or that hereafter may be lawfully made by the Oklahoma Corporation 

Commission, or by other regularly constituted regulatory authority having jurisdiction over 

Grantee. 

 SECTION 8.  During the life of this franchise, Grantee will, if possible and permitted 

under applicable law, sell to Grantor all electric energy requested by Grantor for municipal 

purposes including, but not limited to, water and wastewater treatment, water and storm water 

pumping, and the lighting of City streets. 

 SECTION 9.  From and after the approval and acceptance of this Ordinance, and in 

consideration of the granting of this franchise, Grantee will pay to Grantor as a franchise fee 

and as compensation for the rights and privileges enjoyed under the franchise, a sum equal to 

two percent of its gross receipts from the delivery and, if applicable, the sale of electrical 

energy within the City, payable monthly with each payment to be made not later than the first 

business day of the second month following the month in which the receipts were received 

for the billing cycle for that month.  For example, payment for April receipts, for a subject 

year covering a billing cycle from March 29th through April 27th would be paid not later than 

June 1st.  The fee will be in lieu of all concessions, excise, franchise, licenses, occupation, 

privilege, and permit fees, or taxes, except assessments for special improvements,4wzw and 

ad valorem taxes.  

Grantor must notify Grantee in writing of newly annexed and de-annexed areas.  

The notice must include the ordinance number authorizing the action, an appropriate map 

identifying the areas and documentation of the notice to the state of Oklahoma regarding 

the annexation or de-annexation.  Grantee will have no responsibility for commencing 

franchise payments under the franchise to Grantor in newly annexed areas until Grantee 

has received Grantor’s notification.  Upon Grantor’s notification and beginning the 91st 

day after receipt of the notice, Grantee will begin payments to Grantor for the gross receipts 

from delivery and, if applicable, the sale of electrical energy in each newly annexed area and 

will make any appropriate adjustments in payments reflecting overpayments made in any 

prior month resulting from the inclusion of gross receipts from delivery and, if applicable, the 

sale of electrical energy in de-annexed areas.  Payments for receipts in newly annexed areas 



   

5 
 

#2861989v1 

and adjustments for overpayments in de-annexed areas will be made back to the effective date 

of the ordinance authorizing the action.   

 Grantor agrees that the percentage paid to Grantor by Grantee, including any 

necessary revision, will in no event exceed the percentage rate used to calculate any fee or tax 

paid to Grantor by any other person or entity if the fee or tax is based in any way on the amount 

of revenues from delivery or sales of electrical energy or both by such other person or entity 

to ultimate customers within the City. 

 SECTION 10. Grantor shall have the option at any time during the term of this 

franchise to present to the voters of the City of Bartlesville the issue whether in addition to 

the franchise fee provided for in Section 9, Grantee should also pay to Grantor a facilities fee 

equal to one percent of Grantee’s gross receipts from the retail sale of electric energy within 

the City of Bartlesville including any revenues, fees, or payments received by Grantee for the 

lease or use of its plants and systems for the distribution and transmission of electric energy 

that is sold to an ultimate customer by any other person or entity within the City of Bartlesville.  

The facilities fee provided for in this section, if approved by the voters, will be for the purpose 

of providing Grantor a source of revenue to be used by Grantor to pay such costs as may be 

designated by Grantor’s governing body and submitted to the voters at the election where the 

issue whether such facilities fee should be adopted is presented for approval.  To exercise such 

option, Grantor must provide Grantee written notification of Grantor’s intent to submit this 

issue for election by the qualified voters of the City of Bartlesville to be held not less than two 

months nor more than six months from the date of such written notification.  Grantee shall be 

responsible for all costs of the election in which this issue may first be presented to the voters 

for decision.  Subsequent elections on the same issue, if any, shall be at Grantor’s expense.  If 

the issue whether a facilities fee of the type described in this section is submitted for election 

in accordance with these provisions and a majority of the qualified electors of the City of 

Bartlesville voting thereon vote in favor of such facilities fee being paid by Grantee to Grantor, 

such facilities fee shall go into effect at the end of the calendar year in which such election is 

held, to be thereafter paid by Grantee in accordance with the provisions of Section 9. If a 

majority of the qualified electors of the City of Bartlesville voting thereon vote against the 

facilities fee, the franchise fee will continue in full force and effect until the end of the term 

provided for in Section 2. 



   

6 
 

#2861989v1 

 

 SECTION 11.   This Ordinance will be in full force and effect from and after its 

acceptance upon its passage and approval by a vote of the qualified electors residing within 

the City who will vote on the acceptance at a special election called under or pursuant to the 

provisions of this Ordinance.  If, however, this Ordinance fails to be so approved at the special 

election, it will be deemed wholly void and of no effect.   

 The Mayor of the City is authorized and instructed to call for an election by resolution 

in the manner and form provided by the laws of the state of Oklahoma for the calling of special 

elections, giving the resolution, notice and ballot title accordingly as provided by law for the 

purpose of submission to the qualified electors residing within the City.  The qualified electors 

will vote on the proposition by either approval or refusal of this Ordinance and the non-

exclusive franchise contract granted herein; and the proper officers of the City are directed to 

do all things necessary for the holding of the election and for the submission of the question 

and must in all things comply with the election laws of the state of Oklahoma.  

 If the franchise is approved at the election, Grantee will have thirty days after the 

election result is declared to file an acceptance of the Ordinance and franchise with the City 

Clerk, in writing and executed according to law.  

 SECTION 12.   After Grantee has filed the acceptance of this Ordinance as provided 

in Section 10, all rights, privileges and obligations of any other ordinances and franchises or 

portions thereof, under which Grantee may now be exercising its privileges to use the streets, 

alleys, avenues, ways and other public places and grounds within the City’s incorporated 

limits, and all other ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance will be 

and thereafter remain cancelled, annulled and repealed. 

 SECTION 13.   The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any court of 

competent jurisdiction judges any part or provision invalid, such adjudication will not affect 

or impair any of the remaining parts or provisions of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 14.  Whereas an immediate necessity exists so that the City’s residents may 

be provided an adequate supply of electricity for heating, lighting and power purposes and for 

the purpose of providing light, heat and power for its streets, alleys, public grounds, parks and 

other public places and institutions and for the preservation of public health, peace and safety, 

an emergency is declared to exist by reason of which this Ordinance will be in full force and 



   

7 
 

#2861989v1 

effect from and after its passage and approval at the special election, its publication and PSO’s 

filing of its acceptance. 

 Approved, this ______ day of _____________________, 2023. 

 

      ___________________________________ 
      Dale Copeland, Mayor  
 

 

 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Jason Muninger                                                  
City Clerk 



 
#2861958v1 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 
OKLAHOMA (“CITY”), CALLING FOR A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 
THE 9th DAY OF MAY 2023, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING AN 
ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL BY THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS THAT WILL 
GRANT TO PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF OKLAHOMA, AN OKLAHOMA 
CORPORATION (PSO), A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR TWENTY-FIVE 
YEARS TO BUILD, EQUIP, MAINTAIN, EXTEND, OWN AND OPERATE A SYSTEM 
FOR THE MANUFACTURE, TRANSMISSION, DISTRIBUTION, SALE AND 
CONTROL OF ELECTRICITY IN AND TO THE CITY AND THE PUBLIC 
GENERALLY, TO A VOTE OF THE REGISTERED VOTERS OF THE CITY FOR 
THEIR APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL; SPECIFYING THE QUESTION TO BE 
VOTED UPON AT THE SPECIAL ELECTION AND FURTHER DIRECTING THE 
DISTRIBUTION AND PUBLICATION OF THIS RESOLUTION. 
 

RECITALS 
 

Article 18, §5(a) of the Oklahoma Constitution provides that no grant of a franchise 

by a municipal corporation will be valid unless approved by a majority vote of the qualified 

electors of a city. 

By a vote on March 6th, 2023, the City Council approved an Ordinance calling for 

a special election to be set to approve or disapprove the franchise granted in the Ordinance.  

 If approved, the Ordinance will grant to PSO a non-exclusive franchise for twenty-

five years to build, equip, maintain, extend, own, and operate a system for the manufacture, 

transmission, distribution, sale, and control of electricity and information distribution in and 

to the City and the public generally. 

 Upon the adoption of this Resolution, the Mayor of the City shall proclaim a special 

election to submit the Ordinance for approval or disapproval by the qualified electors of the 

City. 

 Oklahoma statutes 11 O.S. §16-101 and §16-304 require that notice of a special 

election must be given by publishing the Resolution, Ordinance, and Special Election 

Proclamation and Notice of the municipal governing body calling for the special election in 

a legal newspaper of the county at least ten days before the date of the special election, or 

if there is no legal newspaper of the county in general circulation in the municipality, the 

notice must be given by posting a copy of the Resolution in at least five public places in the 

municipality. 



 
#2861958v1 

2 

 
 RESOLUTIONS 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, as required by the 

Constitution and Oklahoma statutes shall call a special election for the purpose of submitting 

an Ordinance to the registered voters of the City for their approval or disapproval, the 

Ordinance granting to Public Service Company of Oklahoma, an Oklahoma Corporation, a 

non-exclusive franchise for twenty-five years to build, equip, maintain, extend, own, and 

operate a system for the manufacture, transmission, distribution, sale, and control of 

electricity and information distribution in and to the City and the public generally.   

 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor of the City shall call a special 

election on the 9th day of May, 2023, to be administered by the Washington County Election 

Board. 

 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the County Election Board that the 

question to be voted upon at a special election will be as follows: 

 
          PROPOSITION 

 
An ordinance granting to Public Service Company of Oklahoma (PSO) the 
right, privilege and non-exclusive franchise for twenty-five years to build, 
equip, maintain, extend, own and operate a system for the manufacture, 
transmission, distribution, sale, and control of electricity and 
communications circuits for itself and others in, under, over, across, through 
and along any and all of the present and future streets, alleys, avenues, ways 
and other public places and grounds within the limits of the City of 
Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma; and granting to PSO the right 
to operate an electric business pursuant to reasonable rules and regulation 
by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission; with PSO agreeing to charge 
legal rates for the electric service;  and, if possible, to sell and deliver to the 
City all electricity and services requested by it; providing for payment to 
the City by PSO of a monthly fee on gross receipts from the delivery and 
sale of electricity; and providing for the repeal of conflicting ordinances; 
and declaring an emergency. 
 
Shall the proposed ordinance be approved? 
 

    FOR THE PROPOSITION - YES 
 

AGAINST THE PROPOSITION - NO 
 



 
#2861958v1 

3 

 AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor does direct the City Clerk of 

Bartlesville, Oklahoma to cause the Resolution, Ordinance, and Special Election 

Proclamation to be published in a legally qualified newspaper of the county one time within 

fifteen days after adoption of this Resolution, or post a copy of this Resolution in at least 

five public places in the municipality if the Resolution cannot be published in accordance 

with law, the publication or posting being for the purpose of giving notice of the special 

election to be held on the 9th day of May, 2023. 

 SIGNED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma, 

this _______ day of __________________, 2023. 

  
                       
      
 ____________________________________ 

       Dale Copeland 
       Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk 
 
 
 



Page 1 
#2861799v1 

 

SPECIAL ELECTION PROCLAMATION AND NOTICE 
 

 Under and by virtue of Section 5(a), Article XVIII, of the Oklahoma Constitution, 
Title 11 Oklahoma Statutes, Section 16-101, and City of Bartlesville Resolution ______ 
dated this _______ day of ____________, 2023, authorizes the calling of an election on the 
proposition stated in this notice.  I, the undersigned Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma (“City”), call and give notice of an election to be held in the City on the _______ 
day of ______________, 2023, to submit the following proposition to the registered, 
qualified voters in the City. 
 

        PROPOSITION 
 

An ordinance granting to Public Service Company of Oklahoma (PSO) the 
right, privilege, and non-exclusive franchise for twenty-five years to build, 
equip, maintain, extend, own, and operate a system for the manufacture, 
transmission, distribution, sale, and control of electricity and 
communications circuits for itself and others in, under, over, across, 
through, and along any and all of the present and future streets, alleys, 
avenues, ways and other public places and grounds within the limits of the 
City of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma; and granting PSO the 
right to operate an electric business pursuant to reasonable rules and 
regulation by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission; with PSO agreeing 
to charge legal rates for the electric service;  and, if possible, to sell and 
deliver to the City all electricity and services requested by it; providing for 
payment to the City by PSO of a monthly fee on gross receipts from the 
delivery and sale of electricity; and providing for the repeal of conflicting 
ordinances; and declaring an emergency. 
 
Shall the proposed ordinance be approved? 
 

    FOR THE PROPOSITION - YES 
 

AGAINST THE PROPOSITION - NO 
   

Only registered, qualified voters of the City may vote upon the above proposition. 

The polls will open at 7:00 A.M. and remain open continuously until 7:00 P.M. 

The precinct officers designated by the Washington County Election Board will 

conduct the election, act as counters, and certify the results as required by law.  

The number and location of the polling places for the election will be the same as 

prescribed by the County Election Board for state and county elections and will include all 

precincts totally or partially contained within the City limits. 

 



Page 2 
#2861799v1 

 

 Dated this ______ day of ______________, 2023. 

 
 
   _________________________________________________ 
 

Dale Copeland, Mayor, City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 
Jason Muninger, Clerk 
 
 
 



Page 1 
 

#2861923v1 

ACCEPTANCE OF FRANCHISE 
 

 On _____________, 2023, the City Council of the City of Bartlesville, Washington 

County, Oklahoma (“City”), enacted and passed Ordinance No. ___________, approved 

by the Mayor of the City on that day: 

An ordinance granting to Public Service Company of Oklahoma (PSO) 
the right, privilege and non-exclusive franchise for twenty-five years to 
build, equip, maintain, extend, own, and operate a system for the 
manufacture, transmission, distribution, sale, and control of electricity 
and communications circuits for itself and others in, under, over, across, 
through, and along any and all of the present and future streets, alleys, 
avenues, ways, and other public places and grounds within the limits of 
the City of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma; and granting 
PSO the right to operate an electric business pursuant to reasonable rules 
and regulation by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission; with PSO 
agreeing to charge legal rates for the electric service;  and, if possible, to 
sell and deliver to the City all electricity and services requested by it; 
providing for payment to the City by PSO of a monthly fee on gross 
receipts from the delivery and sale of electricity; and providing for the 
repeal of conflicting ordinances; and declaring an emergency. 

 
 If approved by the electors of the City, the Ordinance provides that all of its terms, 

provisions, rights, and obligations and all franchises and contracts contained therein will 

become effective so long as within thirty days following declaration of the special election 

result, PSO files its acceptance in writing with the City Clerk, duly executed according to 

law and accepting all of the terms, provisions, conditions and obligations pursuant to the 

Ordinance. 

 There having been a special election held on ___________________, 2023, for the 

consideration of the Ordinance, franchise, and contracts, the Washington County Election 

Board did declare on  __________________, 2023, that the Ordinance was approved, 

passed and carried at that special election by a vote of ______ cast in favor of the 

Ordinance, there having been ______ votes cast against the Ordinance.  



Page 2 
 

#2861923v1 

 Public Service Company of Oklahoma, an Oklahoma corporation, being the grantee 

mentioned in Ordinance No. ___________, does expressly accept all terms and conditions 

of the Ordinance, franchise and contracts. 

 Witnessed, signed, and sealed on behalf of Public Service Company of Oklahoma 

by its President on this ______ day of _____________________, 2023. 

      
PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF OKLAHOMA 

 
 
 

    By: ______________________________________ 
    Name: Leigh Anne Strahler 

     Title:  President and COO 
 
 
Filed in the office of the Clerk of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, on this  ________ 
day of __________________, 2023. 
 
 
     ________________________________________ 
     Jason Muninger, City Clerk 
 
      
 
 
 
  



Page 3 
 

#2861923v1 

STATE OF OKLAHOMA   § 
 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON  § 
 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE   § 
 
 The undersigned, City Clerk of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma, 
certifies that the foregoing constitutes and is a full, true, correct, and complete copy of the 
Acceptance of Franchise filed with the undersigned, as City Clerk, by Public Service 
Company of Oklahoma, on   ________________________, 2023. 
 
 Witnessed, signed, and sealed by the City Clerk, accepted, and attached on 
_________________________, 2023. 
 
 
(SEAL)           
     ______________________________ 
      

Jason Muninger, City Clerk 
      
           



 
#2861958v1 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 
OKLAHOMA (“CITY”), CALLING FOR A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 
THE 9th DAY OF MAY 2023, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING AN 
ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL BY THE QUALIFIED ELECTORS THAT WILL 
GRANT TO PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF OKLAHOMA, AN OKLAHOMA 
CORPORATION (PSO), A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR TWENTY-FIVE 
YEARS TO BUILD, EQUIP, MAINTAIN, EXTEND, OWN AND OPERATE A SYSTEM 
FOR THE MANUFACTURE, TRANSMISSION, DISTRIBUTION, SALE AND 
CONTROL OF ELECTRICITY IN AND TO THE CITY AND THE PUBLIC 
GENERALLY, TO A VOTE OF THE REGISTERED VOTERS OF THE CITY FOR 
THEIR APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL; SPECIFYING THE QUESTION TO BE 
VOTED UPON AT THE SPECIAL ELECTION AND FURTHER DIRECTING THE 
DISTRIBUTION AND PUBLICATION OF THIS RESOLUTION. 
 

RECITALS 
 

Article 18, §5(a) of the Oklahoma Constitution provides that no grant of a franchise 

by a municipal corporation will be valid unless approved by a majority vote of the qualified 

electors of a city. 

By a vote on March 6th, 2023, the City Council approved an Ordinance calling for 

a special election to be set to approve or disapprove the franchise granted in the Ordinance.  

 If approved, the Ordinance will grant to PSO a non-exclusive franchise for twenty-

five years to build, equip, maintain, extend, own, and operate a system for the manufacture, 

transmission, distribution, sale, and control of electricity and information distribution in and 

to the City and the public generally. 

 Upon the adoption of this Resolution, the Mayor of the City shall proclaim a special 

election to submit the Ordinance for approval or disapproval by the qualified electors of the 

City. 

 Oklahoma statutes 11 O.S. §16-101 and §16-304 require that notice of a special 

election must be given by publishing the Resolution, Ordinance, and Special Election 

Proclamation and Notice of the municipal governing body calling for the special election in 

a legal newspaper of the county at least ten days before the date of the special election, or 

if there is no legal newspaper of the county in general circulation in the municipality, the 

notice must be given by posting a copy of the Resolution in at least five public places in the 

municipality. 

Agenda Item 11.



 
#2861958v1 

2 

 
 RESOLUTIONS 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, as required by the 

Constitution and Oklahoma statutes shall call a special election for the purpose of submitting 

an Ordinance to the registered voters of the City for their approval or disapproval, the 

Ordinance granting to Public Service Company of Oklahoma, an Oklahoma Corporation, a 

non-exclusive franchise for twenty-five years to build, equip, maintain, extend, own, and 

operate a system for the manufacture, transmission, distribution, sale, and control of 

electricity and information distribution in and to the City and the public generally.   

 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor of the City shall call a special 

election on the 9th day of May, 2023, to be administered by the Washington County Election 

Board. 

 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the County Election Board that the 

question to be voted upon at a special election will be as follows: 

 
          PROPOSITION 

 
An ordinance granting to Public Service Company of Oklahoma (PSO) the 
right, privilege and non-exclusive franchise for twenty-five years to build, 
equip, maintain, extend, own and operate a system for the manufacture, 
transmission, distribution, sale, and control of electricity and 
communications circuits for itself and others in, under, over, across, through 
and along any and all of the present and future streets, alleys, avenues, ways 
and other public places and grounds within the limits of the City of 
Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma; and granting to PSO the right 
to operate an electric business pursuant to reasonable rules and regulation 
by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission; with PSO agreeing to charge 
legal rates for the electric service;  and, if possible, to sell and deliver to the 
City all electricity and services requested by it; providing for payment to 
the City by PSO of a monthly fee on gross receipts from the delivery and 
sale of electricity; and providing for the repeal of conflicting ordinances; 
and declaring an emergency. 
 
Shall the proposed ordinance be approved? 
 

    FOR THE PROPOSITION - YES 
 

AGAINST THE PROPOSITION - NO 
 



 
#2861958v1 

3 

 AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor does direct the City Clerk of 

Bartlesville, Oklahoma to cause the Resolution, Ordinance, and Special Election 

Proclamation to be published in a legally qualified newspaper of the county one time within 

fifteen days after adoption of this Resolution, or post a copy of this Resolution in at least 

five public places in the municipality if the Resolution cannot be published in accordance 

with law, the publication or posting being for the purpose of giving notice of the special 

election to be held on the 9th day of May, 2023. 

 SIGNED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma, 

this _______ day of __________________, 2023. 

  
                       
      
 ____________________________________ 

       Dale Copeland 
       Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk 
 
 
 



Page 1 
#2861799v1 

 

SPECIAL ELECTION PROCLAMATION AND NOTICE 
 

 Under and by virtue of Section 5(a), Article XVIII, of the Oklahoma Constitution, 
Title 11 Oklahoma Statutes, Section 16-101, and City of Bartlesville Resolution ______ 
dated this _______ day of ____________, 2023, authorizes the calling of an election on the 
proposition stated in this notice.  I, the undersigned Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma (“City”), call and give notice of an election to be held in the City on the _______ 
day of ______________, 2023, to submit the following proposition to the registered, 
qualified voters in the City. 
 

        PROPOSITION 
 

An ordinance granting to Public Service Company of Oklahoma (PSO) the 
right, privilege, and non-exclusive franchise for twenty-five years to build, 
equip, maintain, extend, own, and operate a system for the manufacture, 
transmission, distribution, sale, and control of electricity and 
communications circuits for itself and others in, under, over, across, 
through, and along any and all of the present and future streets, alleys, 
avenues, ways and other public places and grounds within the limits of the 
City of Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma; and granting PSO the 
right to operate an electric business pursuant to reasonable rules and 
regulation by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission; with PSO agreeing 
to charge legal rates for the electric service;  and, if possible, to sell and 
deliver to the City all electricity and services requested by it; providing for 
payment to the City by PSO of a monthly fee on gross receipts from the 
delivery and sale of electricity; and providing for the repeal of conflicting 
ordinances; and declaring an emergency. 
 
Shall the proposed ordinance be approved? 
 

    FOR THE PROPOSITION - YES 
 

AGAINST THE PROPOSITION - NO 
   

Only registered, qualified voters of the City may vote upon the above proposition. 

The polls will open at 7:00 A.M. and remain open continuously until 7:00 P.M. 

The precinct officers designated by the Washington County Election Board will 

conduct the election, act as counters, and certify the results as required by law.  

The number and location of the polling places for the election will be the same as 

prescribed by the County Election Board for state and county elections and will include all 

precincts totally or partially contained within the City limits. 

 

Agenda Item 12.



Page 2 
#2861799v1 

 

 Dated this ______ day of ______________, 2023. 

 
 
   _________________________________________________ 
 

Dale Copeland, Mayor, City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 
Jason Muninger, Clerk 
 
 
 



 13.

















14.













Agenda Item __
March 6, 2023 

Prepared by Larry R. Curtis, Director
and Greg Collins, Assistant Director 

Community Development Department 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Consider and take action on an application from Lance A Windel of Arcadian Housing, LP, for 
approval of an Amendment to an Existing PUD and its Restrictions and Approval of a PUD Site 
Development Plan in a RS-7 /PUD (Single-Family Residential-7 / Planned Unit Development) Zoning 
District, on an approximately 30 acre +/- tract of land located north of Palmetto
Drive, west of Virginia Avenue, legally described as Oak Wood Addition, Bartlesville, Washington 
County, Oklahoma according to the recorded plat thereof.

Attachments: Exhibit A - Planning Commission Report & Proposed PUD Change
Exhibit B - Ordinance 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

Applicant Lance A Windel of Arcadian Housing, LP
- .................... . ...... I .... ·- - - - - .. -

Requested An Amendment to an Existing PUD and its Restrictions and Approval of a PUD
Action Site Development Plan in a RS-7/PUD (Single-Family Residential-7 / Planned Unit 

1 

-···· ······-······-···- P�.����P.m<?,!]t) Zoning pistriE!. _ _ _ _ __ _ __ 1 

� 
= 

Location land located north of Palmetto Drive, west of Virginia Avenue, legally described as 1 

Oak Wood Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma according to the ! 
recorded plat thereof. It ··••· •••• -··-··· - ...... -- •••• •••••••.•••••• - - -i

Current .

1 

RS-7/PUD (Single-Family Residential-7 / Planned Unit Development) Zoning
j �rn� 
l 

-1 - .. ... .. --- ·-·······--· ! 
Area of I Approximately 30 acre+/- ! 

Tract 
I j 

Proposed 
j
' Single-Family Homes

····· --····--·- _j

Land Use 
- - -- -- - - -· ----·--· ·-·---· _ . ._ ....... ____ ----·-- �---------------- - - ----------

North Outside City limits 

t)t) 
........•.. ··-······--·-···· - - - -·-

= � South RS-7 Single-Family Residential ·- � 

g� 
� 'i i West RS-7 Single-Family Residential 
= =
�� 
y 

._.. 
� 

-

East 
-
Outside city limits 

I 

I 

---------

15.







































16.











Agenda Item _ 
February 28, 2023 

Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 
Water Utilities 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Discuss and take action on proposed amendments to the Sewer Use Pretreatment 

Standards Ordinance for Fats, Oils and Grease Attachments: 

- Amendment redlines of the Sewer Use Pretreatment Standards

Ordinance

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

One of the many challenges facing the wastewater collection and treatment system is
managing fats, oils and grease (FOG). Grease, fats and some oils solidify when
cooled and adhere to the wall of a pipe, which over time and accumulation, will plug
lines causing backups or overflows within the system. Prior to the COVID pandemic,
roughly 65% of non-rain related sewer overflows were due to FOG. All FOG
presents challenges to the treatment plant, which does not process these items
biologically and requires a manual removal through either skimming or vacuuming
these items out of the wastewater. Through the pretreatment ordinance, the City has a
FOG program that governs entities that either discharge 25,000 gallons or more of
wastewater a day, or has a reasonable potential for adversely affecting the treatment
plant's operation. However, the ordinance lacks specificity for food service
establishments, which can be a significant contributor of FOG. In August of last
year, Council approved a professional service contract with S2 Engineering to assist
City staff in developing FOG provisions for food service providers within the Sewer
Use Pretreatment Standards ordinance. The proposed amendments to the ordinance
are attached. The highlights of the proposed FOG provisions are summarized below.

• All new food service facilities are required to install a grease interceptor or
trap.

• Existing food service facilities without a grease interceptor or trap are
required to have a documented Best Management Practice (BMP) to control
and manage FOG discharge. The BMP must be kept on site and available for
review during normal business hours.

o If a facility's BMPs are ineffective, staff may require the installation of
a interceptor or trap to mitigate FOG deposits within the City's
collection system or treatment plant.

• Food service facilities with an interceptor or trap need to retain waste
manifests detailing maintenance, and FOG removal. The manifests must be
kept on site and made available for review during normal business hours.

Page 1 of 2 

17.

















































































































1 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

March 1, 2023 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Presentation and discussion on proposed amendments to Chapter 20, Division 7 of 
the Bartlesville Municipal Code pertaining to Water Shortages 

Attachments: 
Ordinance 3398 – Water Shortages (2012) 

  Resolution 3294 (2012) 
Drought Contingency Plan (2002) 
Draft amendments to Water Shortage Ordinance 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

The City of Bartlesville’s water supply is all surface water from Hulah Lake, Copan 
Lake, Hudson Lake and the Caney River, as shown below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18.



2 
 

The City’s water supply has been impacted by the prolonged drought experienced by 
the region.  The watershed feeding Hulah Lake, which is the City’s largest water 
storage component, is experiencing extreme and exceptional drought conditions as 
classified by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration.  Currently the 
overall water supply is at 65%. 

The City has in place a Water Shortage Ordinance (Ordinance 3398) that authorizes 
Council to restrict or prohibit water use, establishes regulatory framework for 
exemptions, penalties and emergency water rates.  The Ordinance requires a separate 
resolution to implement the Drought Contingency Plan (developed in 2002), which 
was done in 2012 (resolution 3294) and still in effect.  A resolution implementing the 
Emergency Water Rates has not been enacted.  The Drought Contingency Plan 
establishes drought stages and subsequent actions based on the remaining water 
supply.  Currently we are in Stage 2, which stipulates the following (current status is 
in italicized): 

• Public education (implemented and on-going); 
• Suspend non-essential operational uses of water by City 

crews (implemented); 
• Alter watering of parks and golf course (implemented) 
• Adopt a reduced schedule for outside water uses (not yet 

implemented due to the time of year and limited outdoor 
use); 

•  Notify wholesale customers (implemented); 
• Invoke penalty phase of ordinance 3398 (not yet 

implemented, the emergency rate structure in the ordinance 
needs amended since it is less than current water rates) 

In December, staff provided an update to Council on the water supply status.  In that 
presentation, staff noted that future Council actions will be necessary to clean up 
language within the ordinance and the emergency water rates. 

After reviewing the language within the ordinance and Drought Contingency Plan, 
staff is proposing to amend the Water Shortage Ordinance with updated emergency 
volumetric rates as well as to pull in provisions contained within the Drought 
Contingency plan to create one document for the City’s strategy in managing 
droughts and water shortages.  Staff will present the proposed ordinance for Council 
discussion.  

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff is seeking feedback on the draft ordinance.   
 



ORDINANCE No.3398 

Published in the Bartlesville 
Exa iner Enterprise on 

'1 &rn ua 9 .Zcr/2 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 20, DIVISION 7 OF THE BARTLESVILLE MUNICIPAL 

CODE PERTAINING TO WATER SHORTAGES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE OKLAHOMA: 

SECTION 1: That Chapter 20, Division 7 of the Bartlesville Municipal Code is hereby amended as 
follows: 

Sec. 20-106 Authority - Whenever a potential water shortage exists, the City Council is 
authorized to restrict or prohibit the use of water from the City's water system. 

Sec. 20-107 Water Shortage Condition - A potential water shortage condition exists 
whenever so declared by the City Council. 

Sec. 20-108. Resolution - Upon determination that a potential water shortage exists, the City 
Council shall authorize the City Manager to implement the terms of the Drought 
Contingency Plan of 2002. The resolution may be revised from time to time as 
the City Council deems appropriate. 

Sec. 20-109. Resolution Publication or Issuance 

(a} The resolution authorized by Sec. 108 shall be published in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the city. The terms of the Resolution shall be in full 
force and effect upon publication. Substantial compliance with this section 
is sufficient to effect the Resolution. 

(b} Whenever sudden or unexpected event so reduces the availability of water 
or water pressure as to create an immediate threat to public health or 
safety, the Mayor may issue an appropriate proclamation and notice of the 
proclamation may be given by reasonable means, including electronic 
means. The emergency shall be in full force and effect upon such notice; 
provided that if any such means is other than that required in (a} of this 
section, the proclamation shall be republished in accordance with (a} of this 
section within 24 hours of the first notice. 

Sec. 20-110- Resolution Duration 

(a) Such Resolution shall continue and the terms of the resolution shall be in 
effect until such time as it is repealed by the City Council. 

Sec. 20-111- Exemptions 

(a} Any person aggrieved by the terms of said resolution shall have the right to 
present the matter to the City Manager or his designee. The City Manager 



or is designee may exempt such aggrieved person, wholly or in part, from 
compliance with the resolution order upon a showing that compliance 
creates an immediate threat to the person's health or safety. The decision 
of the City manager or his designee may be appealed by written notice to 
the City Council but the terms of the resolution as to the person aggrieved 
shall remain in full force and effect during such appeal period. 

Sec. 20-112 - Penalties 

(a} If authorized by a separate resolution passed by the City Council and 
published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City, then any person 
violating any of the restrictions or provisions implemented by the City 
Manager pursuant to authority granted the City Manager or by the City 
Council shall be subject to the following fine schedule: First Offense -
written warning; Second Offense - $50; Third Offense - $100; Fourth Offense 
-$200. 

Sec. 20-113 - Rates During Emergency 

(a} If designated by the City Council in a resolution, the rates for household 
water usage shall be modified on the following basis: 

Charge per 1,000 gallons 
$3.33 
$6.66 
$8.33 
$9.99 
$11.66 
$13.32 

Gallons Used 
Up to 7,000 
7,001 to 8,500 
8,501 to 10,000 
10,001 to 12,500 
12,501 to 15,000 
15,001 and greater 

If the above rates are implemented by resolution of the City Council, the City Manager is 
authorized to impose the rates effective with the normal billing dates. 

SECTION II: Emergency Clause - It being necessary for the health, safety and welfare of the citizens 
of Bartlesville, an emergency is declared to exist and this ordinance shall be effective 
immediately. 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 
OKLAHOMA, THIS 3RD DAY OF DECEMBER 2012. 

11 \II II Ill 11/tti 
,,,,,, 0ART( 111

11,. ~ ,'-' o<r: ................... f::~ ,.,,, 
/t·_...-····offlC/"¼_ ······.~\_ 
-cJi ,~
§ f SEAL \ -;---'-"IL.A-~_.,,,,_,---~------

r ~~ \ \ ....• Ok> ~,~ •. / J MAYOR 
~ ··• •• :.'.(.AHO!,:···· ~ 

--"------=-----''--'-.=..;=--------,1-------'✓-< ............. ,$' 
'>1,,1 ,,,, ...... 

MIKE BAILEY, CITY CLERK ,,,,,,,1111 11111 

ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTO~/CFO 

VOTE: 
MR. MASON 
MR. COPELAND 
MR. MCGREW 
VICE MAYOR LOCKIN 
MAYOR GORMAN 

no 
no 
no 
no 
no 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Drought Contingency Plan 
 

2002 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLAN COMMITTEE 
Councilmember Bob King 
City Manager Steve Brown 

Water Utilities Director Mike Hall  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
A. Purpose 
 
It is recognized that water is our most precious of natural resources and the most difficult 
to obtain during drought conditions. In any public interest matter, constant vigil of the 
conditions of our community and those forces that influence the public safety and welfare 
is paramount. The amount of available water that can be processed for the community’s 
use is one such condition. This drought contingency plan is intended to provide 
guidelines to monitor the available water supply and to take necessary measures for 
conservation and/or restriction of the use of the water supply. Lake levels must be 
maintained to protect the water quality and wild life habitat in those lakes that are a water 
source.  
 
B. Method 
 
The Water Utilities Director is the official responsible for the coordination, expansion 
and implementation of this drought contingency plan. All other City departments will 
provide support as requested by the Water Utilities Director.  For purposes of 
measurement of lake levels, the category of water supply will be monitored through 
available web sites. This will produce a fairly accurate measurement of lake levels and 
can be done at any time day or night. The Water Utilities Director will make a weekly 
check of the lake levels. This will be reported to the City Manager who will inform the 
members of the City Council.  
 
When water storage capacity is at maximum, supply is considered to be 100% and water 
supply is considered to be adequate and no restrictions apply. To establish what is 
actually measured, the water supply is divided into percentage levels. No action other 
than monitoring the velocity of decrease in lake levels will be take between 100% and 
90%. A comparison of the levels against the possibility of rainfall in the drainage basin 
will be conducted throughout this protocol.  
 
For the purpose of this protocol, the supply is further divided as follows: 
• Stage One: Water supply or storage is between 80% and 70%. Public information and 

education on conservation efforts be made known to the public through public service 
announcements. Every available forum will be used to continue to educate the general 
public regarding the status of the water supply. This may be accomplished by various 
means including, but not limited to; the electronic and printed media; billing 
statements; eliciting the aid of civic organizations such as service clubs, scouting 
organizations, public schools, etc;  

 
• Stage Two: If the water supply is between 70% and 60% water restrictions will be 

instituted through action by the City Council through City Ordinance No.3087.  
Notification of city owned facilities such as golf courses and parks to alter or 
discontinue any watering schedules as directed by the City Council.  
 



The restrictions will remain in effect until the lake level is considered to be 70%. The 
Director of Water Utilities will make daily checks when the lake level falls below 
70%. The result of those checks will be made know to the City Council, the City 
Manager and the Public Information Officer. 
 
All leaks in the raw water and treated water system will be repaired immediately, 
without waiting for the most cost effective or convenient time. 
 
Non-essential operational uses of water by City Crews will be suspended. Examples 
include but are not limited to flushing of water mains and fire hydrants; street 
sweeping; water jet cleaning of sanitary sewer mains; training of fire fighters; 
watering by Parks Dept.  
 
Adopt a reduced schedule for outside uses of water for irrigation and other aesthetic 
purposes. (See Restriction Plan for Outdoor Water Uses) 
 
Notification of city owned facilities such as golf courses and parks to alter or 
discontinue any watering schedules as directed by the City Council. 
 
The Water Utilities Director will notify all wholesale customers of the situation and 
require each to adopt similar reduction goals for their systems in accordance with 
their individual contracts with Bartlesville.  
 
Invoke the penalty phase of Ordinance No.3087 as it pertains to the use of water. 

 
• Stage Three: When lake levels fall below 60% more severe water restrictions may put 

into place by the City Council. The following actions will be initiated: 
 

Continue all of the actions as directed in Stage Two. 
 
Tighten the restriction on non-essential outdoor uses of water (sprinkling; 
gardening; washing of vehicles; filling of public or private swimming pools) to 
fewer days per week.  
 
Specify and impose the additional mandatory reductions on wholesale customers. 

 
Water pressure from the treatment plant will be reduced to the minimum to 
maintain 35 pounds per square inch pressure in the distribution system and to 
provide adequate pressure and flow for fire fighting.  

  
 
• Stage Four: If lake levels fall below 50% the City Council will declare a water 

emergency and seek further measures to conserve water.  
 

A total ban on outdoor use of water will be placed by the City Council through the 
action of a proclamation.  



 
An aggressive public relations and education program will continue.  
 
Implement enforceable restrictions on essential uses as developed in previous 
stages.  

 
In each stage, the Water Utilities Director will decide what measures are taken to obtain 
water from Hulah Lake, Caney River or other source of raw water. During most of the 
year, Hudson Lake will be utilized for water storage. The Water Utilities Director will 
make the decision as to what ratios will apply to the taking of water from Hudson and 
Hulah Lakes and the Caney River or other available sources. The water emergency will 
remain in effect until the drought has broken and sufficient water has been captured in the 
lakes to exceed the 50% level with a reasonable expectation that the drought is 
permanently broken.  
 
C. Public Information/Education 
 
A public education program will be initiated at the 70% level. This will alert the public to 
the depletion of the lakes and current treatment levels. It is important that the public is 
fully aware of the conditions that exist and what the possibilities of more stringent 
measure may be taken.  
 
Every available forum will be used to continue to educate the general public regarding 
the status o f our water supply and to make please for water conservation. This can be 
accomplished by various means including but not limited to the electronic and printed 
media; billing statements: closed circuit television bulletin board and the notification of 
public interest groups such as civic and service organizations.  
 
The public information/education phase will continue as long as the lake level is between 
70% and 60%.  If lake levels rise to 70%, this phase will no longer be in force.  
 
Assisting Organizations or Groups 
 
As conservation/restriction efforts continue, other departments will be involved in the 
process. This includes the police department and the enforcement of any violations of the 
water restrictions. 
 
Non-essential operational uses of water by City crews will be suspended. These include 
but are not limited to flushing of water mains and fire hydrants; street sweeping with 
water aboard; water jet cleaning of sanitary sewer mains, unless absolutely necessary; 
training of firefighters.   
 
The City of Bartlesville will coordinate efforts with agencies that include but not limited 
to the United States Army Corps of Engineers Tulsa District, Oklahoma Water Resources 
Board, Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality and Oklahoma Department of 
Wildlife, Parks and Recreation.  





*************************** DRAFT *************************** 

Page 1 of 6 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 20, DIVISION 7 OF THE BARTLESVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE PERTAINING TO WATER SHORTAGES. 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE OKLAHOMA: 
 
SECTION 1:  That Chapter 20, Division 7 of the Bartlesville Municipal Code is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 

Section 20-106 Authority  

Whenever a potential water shortage exists, the City Council is 
authorized to restrict or prohibit the use of water from the City’s 
water system. 

 
(a) The Water Utilities Director is the official responsible to 

monitor the City’s water supply, optimize water usage from 
the City’s raw water sources and report to the City Manager, 
who shall inform City Council, whenever the water supply falls 
below 80%.  
 

(b) Any restriction shall be enforceable by both the Code 
Enforcement and the Police Department. 

 
Section 20-107 Water Shortage Condition 

A potential water shortage condition exists whenever the water 
supply falls below 80% or so declared by the City Council. 

 
(a) Stage One:  If the water supply is between 79% and 70%. 

The public will be informed of the current water supply 
status and voluntary usage reduction shall be requested. 
Every available forum will be used to educate the general 
public regarding the status of the water supply and 
measures they can take to reduce usage.  
 

(b) Stage Two: If the water supply is between 69% and 60%, the 
following water restrictions shall be implemented: 

 
(1) City owned facilities such as golf courses, parks and 

capital projects will reduce or discontinue all 
irrigation except as necessary to preserve greens or 
newly planted trees.  For athletic fields or newly laid 
sod or seed, the watering shall be restricted to 
follow the outdoor water restrictions for even 



*************************** DRAFT *************************** 

Page 2 of 6 
 

numbered properties implemented by each stage.   
For City owned swimming pools, a reduced schedule 
of operation or closure may be implemented to 
conserve water.  City owned splash pads will be 
closed. 
 

(2) All leaks in the raw water and treated water system 
will be repaired immediately, without waiting for 
the most cost effective or convenient time. 

 
(3) Non-essential operational uses of water by City 

Crews will be suspended. Examples include but are 
not limited to: flushing of water mains and fire 
hydrants, street sweeping, routine water jet 
cleaning of sanitary sewer mains, and non-essential 
training of fire fighters using potable water. 

 
(4) Outdoor water use shall be restricted to two days 

per week.  Even numbered properties may use 
water outdoors only on Mondays and Thursdays 
and odd numbered properties may use water 
outdoors only on Tuesdays and Fridays. 

 
(5) Any person violating any of the Stage Two 

restrictions shall be subject to the following fine 
schedule: 

 
First Offense - written warning 
Second Offense - $50 
Third Offense - $100 
Fourth Offense - $200 
Fifth or more Offense - $500 

 
 

(6) The Water Utilities Director shall notify all wholesale 
customers and require each to adopt similar 
conservation measures for their systems in 
accordance with their individual contracts with the 
City of Bartlesville. 
 

(7) If designated by the City Council in a resolution, the 
rate adjustment for water usage in Stage Two shall 
be modified as follows: 

 



*************************** DRAFT *************************** 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 

(c) Stage Three: If the water supply is between 59% and 50%, 
the following water restrictions shall be implemented: 

 
(1) Continue all of the actions as directed in Stage Two 

not altered by provisions in Stage Three. 
 

(2) Outdoor water use shall be restricted to one day per 
week.  Even numbered properties may use water 
outdoors only on Thursdays and odd numbered 
properties may use water outdoors only on Fridays. 

 
(3) Any person violating any of the Stage Three 

restrictions shall be subject to the following fine 
schedule: 

 
First Offense - $50 
Second Offense - $100 
Third Offense - $200 
Fourth Offense - $400 
Fifth or more Offense - $500 

 

Stage Two Emergency Water Rate Adjustment 

For accounts with meters smaller than three (3) inches. 

Usage (gallons) Adjustment on volumetric rates 

0—2,000 100% of current rates 

2,001—10,000 100% of current rates 

10,001—25,000 120% of current rates 

25,001—50,000 140% of current rates 

>50,000 150% of current rates 

For accounts with meters three (3) inches or larger, or 
industrial, or wholesale customers who have a separate 
contract for the purchase of water the adjustment shall be 
100% of current rates. 



*************************** DRAFT *************************** 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
(4) Water pressure will be reduced within the 

distribution system to minimum levels allowed by 
state and federal regulations. 
 

(5) If designated by the City Council in a resolution, the 
rate adjustment for water usage in Stage Three shall 
be modified as follows: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(d) Stage Four: If the water supply is below 50%, City Council 
shall declare an emergency and the following water 
restrictions shall be implemented: 

 
(1) Continue all of the actions as directed in Stage 

Three not altered by provisions in Stage Four. 
 

(2) A total ban on outdoor water use.  
 

(3) All City pools will be closed. 
 

(4) Any person violating any of the Stage Four 
restrictions shall be subject to the following fine 
schedule: 

Stage Three Emergency Water Rate Adjustment 

For accounts with meters smaller than three (3) inches. 

Usage (gallons) Adjustment on volumetric rates 

0—2,000 100% of current rates 

2,001—10,000 110% of current rates 

10,001—25,000 150% of current rates 

25,001—50,000 170% of current rates 

>50,000 200% of current rates 

For accounts with meters three (3) inches or larger, or 
industrial, or wholesale customers who have a separate 
contract for the purchase of water the adjustment shall be 
120% of current rates. 



*************************** DRAFT *************************** 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

First Offense - $100 
Second Offense - $200 
Third Offense - $400 
Fourth Offense - $500 
Fifth or more Offense - $500 

 
(5) If designated by the City Council in a resolution, the 

rate adjustment for water usage in Stage Four shall 
be modified as follows: 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(e) Each stage will remain in effect until the water supply 
reaches a level outside of the range indicated for the stage 
and there is an expectation that the water supply will 
remain above said threshold for a reasonable period of 
time. 
 

(f) Any person aggrieved by the terms of a resolution shall 
have the right to present the matter to the City Manager or 
his designee. The City Manager or his designee may exempt 
such aggrieved person, wholly or in part, from compliance 
with a resolution order upon a showing that compliance 
creates an immediate threat to the person's health or 
safety. The decision of the City manager or his designee 

Stage Four Emergency Water Rate Adjustment 

For accounts with meters smaller than three (3) inches. 

Usage (gallons) Adjustment on volumetric rates 

0—2,000 100% of current rates 

2,001—10,000 130% of current rates 

10,001—25,000 170% of current rates 

25,001—50,000 200% of current rates 

>50,000 250% of current rates 

For accounts with meters three (3) inches or larger, or 
industrial, or wholesale customers who have a separate 
contract for the purchase of water the adjustment shall be 
140% of current rates. 



*************************** DRAFT *************************** 

Page 6 of 6 
 

may be appealed by written notice to the City Council but 
the terms of the resolution as to the person aggrieved shall 
remain in full force and effect during such appeal period. 

 
(g) Any excess revenue received through the emergency rate 

volumetric adjustment shall be reserved in a fund 
designated for capital improvements to the water 
distribution, treatment or water supply system.  

  
 

Section 20-108 Resolution publication or issuance 
 
(a) Resolutions authorized by Section 20-107 shall be published in 

a newspaper of general circulation in the city. The terms of the 
resolution shall be in full force and effect upon publication. 
Substantial compliance with this section is sufficient to effect 
the resolution. 
 

(b) Whenever a sudden or unexpected event so reduces the 
availability of water or water pressure as to create an 
immediate threat to public health or safety, the mayor may 
issue an appropriate proclamation and notice of the 
proclamation may be given by reasonable means, including 
electronic means. The emergency shall be in full force and 
effect upon such notice; provided that if any such means is 
other than that required in subsection (a), the proclamation 
shall be republished in accordance with subsection (a) within 
twenty-four (24) hours of the first notice. 

 
 

Section 20-108 Resolution duration 
 

Such resolution shall continue and the terms of the resolution shall 
be in effect until such time as it is repealed by the City Council. 
 

 
 Section 20-109 – 20-125.  Reserved. 

 



Agenda Item ___ 
March 2, 2023 

Prepared by Mike Bailey 
Administration 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discussion and approval of detailed goals as part of the Bartlesville NEXT strategic plan. 
 
Attachments: 

Goals: Bartlesville NEXT 
Strategic Plan: Bartlesville NEXT 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
In June of last year, the City Council formally adopted the attached Bartlesville NEXT plan. This 
plan was the result of months of work that involved the citizens of Bartlesville, City Council, 
City Staff, economic development partners, and major employers. 
 
Following the adoption of the plan, the Directors of the City of Bartlesville have worked to 
develop specific goals intended to advance the Strategic Priorities and Key Objectives identified 
in the plan. Attached you will find the results of this work that were created over 8 months from 
dozens of work sessions. 
 
Each Goal is linked to a specific Key Objective; each Key Objective is linked to a specific 
Strategic Priority; and all Strategic Priorities are linked to the overall mission, vision, and values 
of the organization. In addition, each Goal identifies a department which is responsible for the 
accomplishment of the Goal and the timeline in which the goal is expected to be achieved. 
 
Once the goals are adopted, the current Bartlesville NEXT plan will be complete. Staff will 
immediately begin to work towards the accomplishment of each goal, and the progress will be 
reported back to the City Council periodically. 
 
In subsequent years, the Bartlesville NEXT plan will be reviewed and updated as appropriate 
during the budget planning process by the City Council and City Staff.  We are excited to present 
the next step in defining the future of our organization, which we believe continues Bartlesville’s 
tradition of being A Leading Community by Choice. 
 
Please schedule this item for discussion and approval at our next Council meeting. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Approve the Goals of the Bartlesville NEXT strategic plan as presented. 

19.



BARTLESVILLE NEXT 
GOALS 

 
FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE 
 
Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety 
programs to improve workplace culture and morale. 
 

1. Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and within schools. (HR to 
lead) – 6 months 

2. Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate potential vacation 
buyback program. (HR to lead) – 6 months 

3. Implement a job swap program for employees. (HR to lead) – 6 months 
4. Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly. (HR to lead) – Beginning in Fiscal 

Year 23-24. 
5. Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home program for applicable 

employees. (HR to lead) – 12 months 
 
Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational 
excellence, developing a performance and reward-based evaluation process, and furthering 
integration of IT systems into our operating departments. 
 

1. Develop a committee to research best practices and accreditation programs. 
(Administration to lead) – 6 months from adoption of plan 

2. Develop and implement a performance and reward-based evaluation process for 
general employees by July 1, 2023 with intent to negotiate this process for uniformed 
groups in the future. (HR to lead) – July 1, 2023 

3. Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to determine how we can 
integrate these systems into our operating departments. (IT to lead) – 1 year from 
adoption of plan. 

4. Revise and update our website using newest technologies and integrations to improve 
citizen satisfaction and e-gov capabilities. (Communications to lead) – 18 months from 
adoption of plan 

 
Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, 
community survey, and employee survey. 
 

1. Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and departmental 
achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of report to be circulated in utility bill. 
(Administration to lead) – 1 year from adoption of plan 

2. Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen feedback and requests for all 
City departments. Individual departments may also be surveyed individually as part of 
a larger survey plan. (Administration to lead) – 1 year from adoption of plan 



3. Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their department and the City as 
an overall employer by July 1, 2023. (HR to lead) – July 1, 2023 

4. Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City services as appropriate. 
(Administration to lead) – 6 months 

5. Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow subscription base by 
10%. (Communications to lead) – 1 year 

 
Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a 
comprehensive Council handbook. 
 

1. Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to: 
a. Formal debt policy based on GFOA authoritative guidance. (A&F to lead) – 6 

months 
b. Formal policy requiring that utility rate studies be conducted at least every 5 years 

and requiring Council to utilize periodic rate studies to adopt multiyear rate plans. 
(A&F to lead) – 6 months 

c. Formal capital planning policy requiring that a 5-year Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) be prepared by Staff and adopted by the City Council concurrently with the 
budget every year. (A&F to lead) – 6 months 

2. Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue and expenditures for major 
operating funds to assist the Council and Staff in better planning for the future. (A&F to 
lead) – Fiscal year 2025 budget 

3. City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help to guide current and future 
City Councils. City Manager will work with Mayor to schedule a Council workshop to 
discuss this item within one year of adoption of Strategic Plan. (Administration to lead) – 
1 year 
 

EFFECTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK 
 
Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure. 

1. The intent of the asset management program is to compile age, material, condition, and 
service life of the City’s infrastructure (facilities, airport, streets, storm drain, wastewater, 
water, signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS software to aide in planning improvement 
priority and capital needs.  (Engineering to lead) 

a. Staff will determine what items need to be tracked, what data exists, and what 
data needs to be collected. – 6 months 

b. Select consultant to collect and populate data into ESRI. 
i. Facilities, streets, storm drains, wastewater and water – 1 year from 

completion of first step 
ii. Signs and signals – 2 years from completion of first steps 



Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). 

1. Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). (Engineering to 
lead) 

a. Complete PCI update currently under contract – 6 months. 
b. Once complete, develop several PCI score scenarios (maintain existing, desired PCI 

in 5 years and desired PCI in 10 years) with capital investment requirements – 6 
months. 

 

ECONOMIC VITALITY 
 
Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes 
align with best practices and reflect the character of our community. 

1. Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range plans utilizing accepted best 
practices (i.e. transportation, storm drainage, utilities, etc.). (Community Development to 
lead) 

a. Staff will develop an RFP to select a consultant. – May 31, 2023 
b. Present recommendations to the Council – May 31, 2024 

2. Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes which regulate private 
development and land use following the updated comprehensive land use plan. 
(Community Development to lead) – 1 year after completion of previous step 

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development. 

1. Identify economic development partners and assign City employee to act as economic 
development liaison. Liaison shall act as conduit between economic development 
partners, developer, and City departments. (Administration will lead) – June 30, 2023 

2. Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to determine how best to 
support their efforts and to define the expectations for all parties (Liaison identified in 
step 1 to lead) – November 31, 2023 

3. Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic development partners 

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to 
Bartlesville. 

1. Identify community partners who employ and recruit young professionals. 
(Administration to lead) – August 31, 2023 

2. Engage with community partners to learn how the City can attract young professionals 
and families (Administration to lead) – December 31, 2023 

3. Examine ways to make the community more enticing for businesses and restaurants that 
attract young professionals and families (Administration to lead) – by December 31, 2023 



4. Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their efforts and accomplishments 
(Administration to lead) – December 31, 2023 

 

COMMUNITY CHARACTER 
 
Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community. 

1. Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse cultures in our community. 
(Library is lead) – 9 months 

a. Use this group to support/identify cultural needs that are unmet. 
b. Partner/support this group for an annual event. 

2. Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities, properties, venues, etc.) – 
(Library is lead) – 1 year 

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and 
transportation systems. 

1. As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other plans identified in Economic 
Vitality, update the Parks Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle options and parks and 
recreation systems are meeting the needs of the public. 

2. Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing assets and plans such as 
bicycle plan. 

a. Review, evaluate, and update the Bicycle Plan – (Street and Traffic Committee/ 
Community Development is lead) – 1 year 

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces. 

1. Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community spaces, including destruction 
or defacement of public restrooms, violations of park curfews, etc.  (Public Works/PD is 
the lead) 

a. Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks combined 
with motion and smoke detectors – 1 year 

b. Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems 
i. Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism, 

arson, trespassing, etc. 
2. Coordinate citizen volunteer efforts to supplement our maintenance efforts and to 

improve the appearance of our City. These could include periodic clean up days, adopt a 
mile programs, adopt a path programs, etc. (Community Development/Public Works is 
the lead) 

a. Staff to list and prioritize possible programs. 
b. Adopt formal policy for selected program(s). – 8 months 
c. Advertise, promote, operate, and publicly report on the success of this program. 

3. Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program (PD is lead) – 6 months 



4. Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City App (Community 
Development is lead) – 1 year 

5. Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks and rights-of-way. (Public 
Works is lead) – 2 months 

 

EMERGING ISSUES 
 
Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential 
solution that address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others to be Determined. 

1. Child Care: (Administration to lead) – 12 months 
a. Collaborate with local groups to help find solutions to the local child care shortage. 
b. Help advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to new 

facilities. 
2. Housing: (Community Development to lead) – 12 months 

a. Evaluate local housing supply and demand to determine gaps in local housing 
stock by price level. 

3. Homelessness: (Police to lead) – 12 months 
a. Collaborate with local groups seeking to reduce homelessness including “United 

Way” and “B the Light”. 
b. Review existing laws and enforcement policies and retrain police officers to better 

handle crimes committed by the homeless. 
c. Utilize the mental health team data from PD to understand homeless more, how 

many homeless are in Bartlesville and how they got here. 





INTEGRITY
Do the right thing; the rest will 
follow. We hold ourselves to the 
highest level of honesty, truthfulness 
and ethical conduct.

COMMUNITY
We are both responsive and 
proactive in our efforts to help 
Bartlesville realize our potential.

SERVICE 
We are dedicated to providing 
effective and timely customer service 
with courtesy and respect in a 
fiscally sound manner.

TEAMWORK
We collaborate on common goals for 
the greater good of our community.

COMMUNICATION
We share information and ideas in  
a clear, open and timely manner.

INNOVATIVE
Ours is a “do things differently, 
do different things” mindset in our 
approach as community builders.

OUR  
VISION
A Leading 
Community  
by Choice

OUR 
MISSION

Through collaboration,  
we strive to provide 
exceptional public  

services and enhance  
the distinctive character  

of our community.

OUR VALUES 



STRATEGIC PRIORITIES KEY OBJECTIVES

FINANCIAL 
STRENGTH AND 
OPERATIONAL 
EXCELLENCE

Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department 
collaborations, and safety programs to improve workplace culture  
and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations 
for operational excellence, developing a performance and reward 
based evaluation process, and furthering integration of IT systems into 
our operating departments.

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a 
standard report to citizens, community survey, and employee survey.

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets,  
multi-year plans, and a comprehensive Council handbook.

EFFECTIVE 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
NETWORK

Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

ECONOMIC  
VITALITY

Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, 
regulations, and processes align with best practices and reflect the 
character of our community.

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to 
optimize development.

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young 
professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY 
CHARACTER

Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our 
parks, recreation and transportation systems.

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

EMERGING  
ISSUES

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on 
existing needs and potential solution that address (in order of priority) 
Child Care, Housing, Homelessness and Others to be Determined.


	City Council Agenda March 6, 2023
	Agenda Item 4. Cleaning Week Mar 26-April 1, 2023
	Dale W. Copeland, Mayor and City Council Ward 1

	Agenda Item 6.a.i City Council Minutes February 6, 2023
	Agenda Item 6.b.i. Appoiontment of Richard Keim to WRCB
	Agenda Item 6.b.ii.Quinn Schipper Reappointment Recommendation Letter 3.2.2023
	Agenda Item 6.b.iii. Gretchen Wendtland Recommendation Letter 3.2.2023
	Agenda Item 6.c.i. Staff report Geotech_WWTP_CR corridor - Aimright Testing
	Staff report Geotech_Aimright
	AIMRIGHT Proposal No. PG132623 - Limestone South FEB - Bartlesville OK rev1
	AIMRIGHT Proposal No. PG132623 - Limestone South FEB - Bartlesville, OK.pdf
	Boring Location Plan.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2




	Agenda Item 6.c.ii. Contract with Witt O'Brien's of Houston for Airport
	Agenda Item 6.c.iii. LINK OUTDOOR MEDIA CONTRACT 2023
	Agenda Item 6.c.iv. Proposal from All Media Integration for Equp for Council Chambers
	Agenda Item 6.c.v. Emrich Aerial Spraying Hangar 5 Lease
	Agenda Item 6.c.vi. Termination of Hangar 5 Lease Agreement-Wolfe Aviation
	Agenda Item 6.d.i. 2023.02.28 Council Resolution for Comment Period
	Agenda Item 6.e.i. Feb 2023 Financials
	Feb 2023 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P7 January 2023 Financials
	P7 January 2023  Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 6.f.i. Invitation for Bid 2022-2023-014
	Agenda Item 6.f.ii. Invitation for Bid 2022-2023-015
	Agenda Item 7. BID REVIEW_Minnesota Rehab
	Agenda Item 8. Bid Recommendation for 2022-2023-015
	Agenda Item 9. 08 Resolution City 03-06-2023
	Agenda Item 10. PSO Franchise Ordinance, Resolution and Proclamation
	Franchise Council Cover Letter Template
	Bartlesville Ordinance(2861989.1)
	Bartlesville Resolution(2861958.1)
	Bartlesville Special Election Proclamation and Notice(2861799.1) (002)
	Bartlesville Acceptance of Franchise(2861923.1)

	Agenda Item 11. Bartlesville Resolution(2861958.1)
	Agenda Item 12. Bartlesville Special Election Proclamation and Notice
	Agenda Item 13. Kiddie Park Lease
	Agenda Item 14. Ward Boundary Revisions
	Agenda Item 15. Lance A Windel of Arcadian Housing, LP for PUDD Amendment
	Agenda Item 16. Mick Olsen for VOM for approval of Final Plat
	Agenda Item 17. Ordinance Amending Section 20 Sewer Use Pretreatment Standards
	Agenda Item 18. Staff Report to Council draft Water Shortage Ordinance_2023.03.01
	Staff Report to Council draft Water Shortage Ordinance_2023.03.01
	Ord. 3398 amending Chapter 20, Div.7 Pertaining to Water Shortages
	Drought Contingency Plan
	Drought Contingency Plan
	PLAN COMMITTEE
	A. Purpose
	B. Method
	C. Public Information/Education
	Assisting Organizations or Groups



	Resolution 3294
	Drought Ordinance - Draft_v2

	Agenda Item 19. Final Strategic Plan Goals - Council Report

	Proposal No: 
	Date: 
	Date_2: City of Bartlesville
	Firm Name: 401 South Johnstone Ave., Bartlesville, OK 74003
	Title: 918-338-4107
	Print Name: Mayor Dale Copeland
	Signature: 
	Name: 
	Location: 
	Project No: 
	Purchase Order No: 
	Manager: Terry Lauritsen/Steve Tolar
	Name_2: Terry Lauritsen
	Email: tllaurit@cityofbartlesville.org
	Address: 401 South Johnstone Ave., Bartlesville, OK 74003
	Address_2: 918-338-4107
	Name_3: 
	Email_2: 
	Name_4: 
	Email_3: 
	Name_5: 
	Email_4: 
	Name_6: 
	Email_5: 
	Special InstructionsRow1: 
	Special InstructionsRow2: 


